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LALIN VISION

Lalin Property is determined to become a leader in residential real estate with continuous and sustainable

growth based on quality care and true attention to the living requirements of customers.

LALIN MISSION

Lalin Property is a real estate development company that meets standard quality on outstanding venues

with modern characteristics at value prices in order to deliver quality living experiences to occupants with good

determination and true attention to customer requirements.

LALIN CORE VALUES

L AL I Nrepresents the values held by Lalin Property as a guideline for human resources development and

business growth. LALIN is composed of the following:

L

A

Long Term Thinking

Adaptation

Life Style

Innovation

Networking

means

means

means

means

means

long-term thinking with insight into the business’ continued survival and growth.

adaptability to surrounding conditions through analysis of various factors

affecting business success on a regular basis.

true customer understanding in order to respond to and deliver a good
way of life, life-style and society to customers through construction using

only bricks, rocks, concrete and sand.

the development of new innovations for the purpose of increasing competitive

capacity, e.g., tunnel form and precast methods, etc.

presence of networks and alliances to create sustainable business success.
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Report of Executive Chairman

In 2014, the Thai economy was engulfed in the country’s internal political problems. As a result, the economy dur-
ing the first six months of the year encountered problems and slow down, despite the improving economies of America
and Japan with China’s continued positive growth. The European economy was the only one to recover slowly. Due to
the aforementioned, the overall economy stabilized because of the lack of growth in exports and a sluggish economy.

The real estate industry was also affected by political issues. The absence of confidence significantly delayed
decision-making. However, the company focused on real demand customers. Despite unavoidable impact, the com-
pany’s plans for handling the situation seemed to have played out quite well. Therefore, the effects were seen only at
the sales level, while profits were retained and even grew by four percent.

On behalf of the Lalin Property PCL team, | would like to thank everyone who dedicated effort and devotion to
overcoming this obstacle. | would like to also thank all of our shareholders, suppliers and financial institutions that have

provided good support for the company’s activities and given the company another good year.

C Ml —

(Chaiyan Chakarakul)

Executive Chairman
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Financial Highlights

918ms 2555 2556 2557

KRUNSWE (R1ULN) / Assets (Million Baht)

AUANPUAD (Inventories) 4770.84 581436 6,326.14
Auninesan (Total Assets) 5877.82 6,909.70 7,348.26

NURULASAIUTDILDDNU (R1ULIN)
Liabilities & Shareholders’ Equity (Million Baht)

Wﬁaum}mﬁﬂu (Current Liabilities) 409.06 583.57 1,589.66
wilAulaivsuien (Non-Current Liabilities) 1,396.16 2,032.21 1,245.31
wﬁaumu (Total Liabilities) 1,805.23 2,615.78 2,834.97
nuﬁ@@mmzﬁ‘ﬂﬂﬁﬁimﬁq (Paid up Share Capital) 825.00 825.00 825.00
dauae9gfiatiu (Shareholders’ Equity) 4,062.62 4,293.92 4,513.29
NAMSALUUITU (5’1u‘l.l’m) Operation’s Result
sglFannnisng (Sales) 1,720.39  2,322.81 2,365.60
se/lgisan (Total Revenue) 1,730.29 2,333.45 2,383.80
ﬁﬂia‘%w?’fu (Gross Profit) 682.39 915.39 912.03
finlsgne (Net Prof) 269.69 41831  434.85

Wautludnsisaiu (u1n) Per Share Figure (Baht)

a

fls (1anw) ans (Net Profit (Loss)) 0.33 0.51 0.53

yAAIANTEYT (Book Value) 4.92 5.20 5.47

saffing 3 (Par Value) 1.00 1.00 1.00
ANTIFIUANNARDINIIMSLU (Liquidity Ratio)

ARIIAIUANINAADY (Current Ratio) 12.01 10.18 4.03

ARINAIUANINARBIUN WAL (Quick Ratio) 0.55 0.53 0.16
ARIIRIULEAIANNEINITD LUMSYINmls (Profitability Ratio)

'ﬂ"mqﬁ’]vli%uﬁu (Gross Profit Margin) 39.66% 39.41% 38.55%

fm971113991NN17ALHLeU (Operation Profit Margin) 22.44%  2415%  24.09%

am31ilagus (Net Profit Margin) 15.69%  17.97%  18.24%

dngnanaLuNuEDaiy (Return on Equities) 6.74%  10.02% 9.87%
angdIulssananInlumantiiuau (Efficiency Ratio)

FATHaRRULIUAN NN TR s (Return on Asset) 4.90% 6.56% 6.10%
angdIuulauan1amsdy (Financial Policy Ratio)

ﬁmswﬁ%um’m’qumqﬁjﬁ@ﬁju (Debt to Equity Ratio) 0.44 0.6 0.63

FmsdaupNanLNTIFNsE AR (Interest Coverage Ratio) 11.28 14.81 19.54

AuuunEaNg19zA (A1) Number of Outstanding Shares (Million Shares) ~ 825.00  825.00  825.00
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Board of Directors and Management

Period Position Company Business
1. Taveesak Watcharakawong 68 - Over 30 years experience 28.30 2003 - Present Chairman Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Chairman in Real Estate Business 1988 - 2002 Chairman Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
(Authorized Director)
2.Chaiyan Chakarakul 65 -Bachelor Degree in Commerce  34.36 2003 — Present Managing Director  Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Director and (honour) Thammasart University 1998 - 2002 Managing Director  Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Executive Chairman -M.S.Thammasart University
(Authorized Director) Real Estate Management,
Chulalongkorn University # 8
- Senior Executive Program 4 Sasin
GIBA Chulalongkom University and
The Wharton School University of
Pennsyvania and “Kellogg” -
Graduate School of Management
North-Western University
- The National Defence for joint state-
private sectors course, class 14
-DCP Class 65 - I0D
- Capital Market Academy (CMA),
Class 7
3.Suvarn Tansathit 70 -(M.SC)in Commerce - 2006 — Present Director / Senior Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd.  Financial Institution
Independent Director University of SANTO TOMAS Executive Vice
and Chairman of The -BBA (management) President
Audit Committee University of East Philippine 1998 - 2006 SEVP - Special Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd.  Financial Institution
-DCP Class 63 - 0D Asset Management
4.Niputh Jitprasonk 71 -Certificate in Real Estate - 2013 — Present Consultant of Real Thammasat University Educational Institution
Independent Director and Member Manage-ment University at Hawaii Estate Management
of Audit Committee -M.B.A. International Trade and Program
Finance, Gothenburg School of 1995-2012 Director of Real Thammasat University Educational Institution
Economics and Business Admin- Estate Management
istration, Sweden Program
-Bachelor of Arts, (Honour First
Class) Faculty of Commerce and
Accountancy, Thammasat University
- The National Defence for joint state-
private sectors course, class 7
- Capital Market Academy (CMA),
Class 2
-DCP Class 85 - 10D
5. Satit Chanjavanakul 67 - M.B.A. Thammasat University - 2004 - 2008 Secretary General, Board of Investment (BOI) Government
Independent Director and Member - M.Sc. (Textile Technology), Board of Investment
of Audit Committee University of Leeds, U.K. (BOI),
- Bachelor of Engineering 2003 - 2004 Deputy Secretary Board of Investment (BOI) Government
(Industrial Engineering), General, Board of
Chulalongkorn University Investment (BOI)
- The National Defence for joint 2001 - 2003 Deputy Permanent Ministry of Industry Government
state-private sectors course, Secretary, Ministry
class 14 of Industry
- DCP Class 83 - 10D
- Capital Market Academy (CMA),
Class 5
6. Nat Sangarsongkogk 55 -M.B.A. Rangsit University 0.04 2012 - Present Deputy Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Director and Deputy Managing -Real Estate Management, Managing Director
Director Chulalongkorn University # 11 2003 -2012 Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
(Authorized Director) -DCP Class 67 - 10D Managing Director
2000 - 2002 Senior Project Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Management Man-
ager
1989 - 2000 Project Management  Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Manager
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(niiumiéﬁémwmum) - Director Certification Program (DCP) Qﬁmms
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NIIUNT UAT University U.S.A. 2555-2557  fnenssumagiams uss.ada niewmedi wanadmFaming
989N331N9HAANS - 1Bryaln M.S. (Economic) .
(nasumsgilenunaaaun) University of lllinois ~ Urbana 2553-2555  f§unen13SBU2  una.ada wiewwedi wannadmFaming
Champaign U.S.A. uazfdnms
- WSye? ddanssudtans henisnann .
iaNINININeN§e 2552-2553  fonddans UnA.a50 niammadh ARedmizaming
- Director Certification Program (DCP) gnensnana
4 161-10D 2551-2552  Assistance vua.uFaaes Nl anniunaiu
- wédngms “frirgalnailuszuay Vice President
szananlpe (u) fu3 - anniu 2549 - 2551 Analyst — LR WENURL (M) AnNIUNNIRU
wazinindn (L) Investment Banking
2548 - 2549 Analyst — LRI (NINTU) AnNIUNNIRU
Investment Banking
8. W1ENs SUNNAIUAS 42 - snyaynin Master of Accountancy - 2555 - flaqify  fenssumsiiams  uwa.ada WEenmadh Anedmisaming
fvenssun1sgdnnis WIRINTININENGE
- s ety amanende 2654-2555  Chief Financial Uan.nu Snes wiua gAEMNITH
AU Officer
2548 - 2554 van.fu d anf fuiwef EAANMNITH
Finance&Accounting
Manager
9. WNELNFIA FNAWATIZN 61 - Wyanln medanieminiguas - 2556 - flaqifiy  déaensenls  una.ada niewmadh WanadmTumine
fgnaenisdheenla AN (MPPM) - NIDA theni@manunesin .
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10. wiadude asyqaina 48 - 1frganin Uivsgshia (VBA) - 2556 - flaqiiy  femwensenla  una.ada newmedh Waadamduning
fennenistheenla WA szanuiing thenfmsnuriestna
thenmsnureain - Brynyeid Aganssulas 2554-2566  fdanslasents wan.§idE waus Wanadmduning
anfumaluladnszaeuingn 21904
wzuAsile 2551-2554  faannslasenns  unagnGeanaim Wanadmaunine
- Mini MRE 8uminendtassuanans 219la ,
2547 - 2551 femaamslanms LA AmAReUARSAd rlagig
1. uilsgn 89533 51 - Brynynes narinyd . 2546-faqiiy  famisded  una.ade newmeds WanadmTuning
ganmscheniod WAINENGENZINN
- Mini MBA q¥inaansniumninenge 2531 - 2545 Hanefdnnis Uan.a8a waud uaudidng  simnedorsiming
thetinyd
128163 Augdad 37 - Wryayaln Uvnegania (MBA) - 2551 -flaqiiy  fansdienisfu  una.ade nianmedi wnadmizuning
ginnsthensdu AAINTINITINENGE .
LAY 1AIYNTLEEM - By sid Uswagsnia (BBA) 2549 - 2550 fugdanns Uaa.488 Wianinesn imnedununing
WNANENAussINANGRS thennafiu
- Certificate in Real Estate Man- 2546-2548  Trader v udunslng Tagraain
agement University of California, 2542 - 2544 Internal Auditor SUNASNINN AR (T 01TUNIRY

Riverside Extension U.S.A.
Company Secretary Program (CSP)
$u50-10D
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Age

Share

(%) Period Po Company Business
7. Churat Chakarakul 37 -MB.A. American University US.A.  0.30 2014 - Present Deputy Managing  Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Director and -M.S. (Economic) University of 2012-2014 Director
Deputy Managing Director Ilinois — Urbana Champaign U.S.A. Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,L.td.  Property Development
(Authorized Director) -Bachelor of Engineering, Chul- 2010-2012 Managing Director
alongkorn University SBU2 Director &
-DCP Class 161 - 10D Corporate Marketing  Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
- New generation leader in 2009 -2010 Department Manager
Democracy Program Class 3 — Assistant The Brooker Group Financial Institution
King Prajadhipok Institute’s Society 2008 - 2009 Marketing Manager Public Co.,Ltd.
Assistance Capital Nomura Securities Financial Institution
2006 - 2008 Vice President Public Co.,Ltd.
Analyst - Phatra Securities Public Co.,Ltd.  Financial Institution
2005 - 2006 Investment Banking
Analyst -
Investment Banking
8. Korn Thanapipatsiri 42 -Master of Accountancy - - 2012 - Present Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Assistant Managing Director Chulalongkorn University Managing Director
-Bachelor of Accountancy - 2011-2012 Chief Financial Green River Panels Co.,Ltd. Industry
Ramkhamhaeng University Officer
2005-2011 Finance&Accounting  N.C.R. Rubber Industry Co.,Ltd.  Industry
Manager
9. Narong Sangarsongkogk 61 -Master of Public and Private Man- - 2013 - Present Senior Project Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Senior Project Construction Director agement (MPPM), NIDA Construction Director
- Bachelor of Engineering, Phillipines 2000-2012 Senior Project Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
-Bachelor of Engineering, Construction
(Construction Management) Manager
- Sukothai Dhammatirat University 1988 - 2000 Project Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
-MiniMBA Chulalongkom University Construction
-Mini MBA Thammasat University Manager
10. Wanchai Aranvutikul 48 - M.B.A. - Srinakharinwirot University - 2013 - Present  Senior Project Lalin Property Public Property Development
Senior Project Construction - Bachelor of Civil Engineering, Construction Director - Co.,Ltd.
Director King Mongkut's University of 2012-2013 Senior Project TCC Land Co.,Ltd.
Technology North Bangkok Manager Property Development
- Mini MRE - Thammasat University 2007 - 2012 Senior Project Pruksa Real Estate
Manager Public Co.,Ltd Property Development
2003 - 2007 Project Director Ktech Constru ction
Public Co.,Ltd Construction
11. Kanitha Thamviseth 51  -Bachelor of Accountancy — - 2003 - Present Accounting Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Accounting Manager Bangkok University Manager
- Mini MBA - Chulalongkom University 1988 - 2002 Assistant Lalin Land & House Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Accounting Manager
12. Seri Sintuas 37 -M.B.A.- Chulalongkorn University - 2008 - Present Finance Manager  Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Finance Manager and Company’s -B.B.A. - Thammasat University
Executive Secretary Certificate in Real Estate 2006 - 2007 Assistant Lalin Property Public Co.,Ltd.  Property Development
Management University of Califomia, Finance Manger
Riverside Extension U.S.A. 2003 - 2005 Trader The Siam Cement Public Co.,Ltd.  Construction Material
-CSP Class 50 - I0D Bangkok Bank Public Co., Ltd.
1999 - 2001 Internal Auditor Financial Institution
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Policy and Overall Business Operations

Significant Changes and Development

Lalin Property Public Co., Ltd. was founded on 8 September 1988 with initial registered capital of 20 million baht
and Mr. Thaweesak Wacharakhawong and Mr. Chaiyan Chakornkul as the first shareholders. The company conducts
housing business under the slogan “Home Built with the Best Intention”. The first housing project under the project
name “Lully Ville” was set up in two areas, namely, Srinagarind and Dhupateme Roads, with a total of 800 housing units
on 88 rai of land and a project value of 1,100 million baht. The project has already been closed. Throughout the past,
the company has continually launched housing projects, even during the economic crisis of 1997 when the company
was one of only a few companies in Thailand that did not require debt restructuring and created no NPL for any financial

institutions.

During the time of crisis for the real estate industry, the company started marketing for new housing projects, e.g.
the project Friend-get-Friend and the implementation of escrow accounts to build customer confidence. As a result,
the company was one of only a few companies in the real estate industry with no need to re-negotiate its debt structure
with any financial institution. Moreover, the company was the leader in implementing the strategy to purchase projects
and land as collateral for the NPAs of financial institutions and asset auction from the Financial Sector Restructuring
Authority (FSRA) for further development. As a result, the company was able to develop projects continually and with

annually increasing sales figure and competitive operating costs under today’s conditions of fierce competition.
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The company has increased its registered capital

consistently to support project development as follows:
1997 Increased registered capital to 250 million baht.

1998 Increased registered capital to 300 million and

400 million baht, respectively.
1999 Increased registered capital to 555 million baht.

2002 Converted to public company on 3 September
2002 and registered in the SET with registered

capital increased to 825 million baht.

Throughout the past ten years, the company has expanded projects consistently to support business growth
and replace previously completed projects. The company has conducted regular research on market demand and
developed products to meet consumer demands and expand its customer base. In 2010, the company launched a
new brand, “Lanceo”, with single home and modern duplex home projects, designed by a designing company with
performance accepted worldwide with an Organic Contemporary theme blending contemporary work with nature. The
following year, the company launched another new brand, “Lio”, a 2-storey and 3-storey town home project in modern
ecology style. The two brands are for customer base expansion to the market of new generation consumers. As of
the end of 2014, the company had launched a total of 23 “Lanceo” and “Lio” projects valued at approximately 18,000

million baht.

Furthermore, the company launched an 8-storey condominium project to support specific consumer groups,
especially those who are new graduates who have just started working and people who want to live in condominiums
in the city. During 2011-2013, the company launched four 8-storey condominium projects under the brand “Levo” and
“Lib” valued at approximately 1,200 million baht. The first project began to generate income in late 2012. In addition to
expanding customer base to a wider age range, the company also expanded its customer base in terms of geographic
area. The company has expanded its business to provincial markets since 2012, to provinces with capacity such as
Chonburi, Rayong, Chachoensao, and Nakhonratchasima. At the end of 2014, a total of seven new projects were

launched in provincial markets.

Business Goals

The company is determined to become the nation’s leading business in the housing business with policy focused
on stable, continual growth and business expansion by taking factors into consideration with prudence and caution and
seeking new business opportunities. The company is considering concepts for developing projects capable of meeting
customer demands from project location, housing development with consideration of functionality, modern design, cost
effectiveness as well as the building of quality society. The company’s motto is “Homes Built with the Best Intention”.
Under normal conditions, the company launches new housing projects every year in areas with capacity, according to
the Five-Corner Home policy, with fair selling prices and quality society, with emphasis on lower middle to high class
customers, and focus on customers with real demand. During the past five years (2010 — 2014), the company launched
5-6 new projects per year. And in 2015, the company plans to launch about 6-8 new projects with an approximate total
value of 4,000 million baht.
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Nature of Business

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is a developer of houses with land for commercial sales. The Company
currently has registered capital of 925 million Baht (of which 825 million Baht is fully paid-up). Mr. Taveesak Watcharak-
kawong serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul as Executive Chairman. The Com-
pany is the sole developer and owner of various residential housing projects, with a primary focus on detached house,
semi detached houses (new concept homes), and townhouses in the Bangkok and greater Bangkok area. The projects
comprise “Lalin GreenVille”; “Baan Lalin in the Park”; “Baan Burirom”; “Lully Ville”, “The Balcony Home”, and the two
new brands named “Lanceo” and “Lio”. The company launched a new condominium project branded “LEVO” in 2011,
and “The LIB” in 2012 to support customer’s needs. The company launched projects which cover 5 major regions of
Bangkok and vicinities, that is, the central city zone, the western zone, eastern zone, northern zone and southern zone.
This has provided the basis for the Company’s business direction for the past 27 years. Moreover, since 2012 Com-
pany has started to expand business to other potential provinces. At the end of 2014, Company had already launched
7 projects in up-country market.

With its extensive experience spanning over 20 years, the Company is the leader of the mid market housing
segment, targeting customers looking to purchase homes in the 1.5 - 6 million Baht range. This segment represents a
market supported by real demand, with consumers possessing a household income of between 25,000 -120,000 Baht
per month. This market also includes a significant number of the population. The Company is committed to ongoing
product development, to meet the needs of consumers, whether in terms of project locations; developing house designs
with a regard for functionality; contemporary design; and value for money. This reflects the philosophy carried in the
hearts of all Lalin Property employees: “Houses built on good intentions”.

The Company seeks to develop projects that meet demand for housing in areas that consumers want, striving to
make the Lalin Property name widely associated with value and quality. The homes in each project offer a selection of
designs to choose from. Customers can purchase either one of 3 options in the projects: pre-built homes, semi-pre-built
homes and built-to-order homes. This approach and business strategy has allowed the Company to fulfill the needs of
its customers, inspiring them with confidence in its operations. Company had registered trademark for project’'s names,
and each of project names have their own customer target. At present, Company has project names under management

as follow.

Lalin Greenville Luxe

WM\ GREEN VILLEJ
Project Type : Detached House
Target Customer  : High Income Segment. Selling price is above 7 Million Baht.

Lalin Greenville

- 0
Qaa ndu3aa Qda '\gq‘ﬁf%%,
douyd & Jummdwte grsmai

Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : High Income Segment. Selling price is above 5 Million Baht.
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Baan Lalin

UNUYSEbE O Est e

Project Type : Detached House

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 3.0 — 5.0 Million Baht.

Baan Burirom

Unicaaa 'U’-)u aaa young Executive
W

B lod~ GO BRI . sl

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept)

Target Customer  : Medium Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.2 — 4.0 Million Baht.
Lully Ville

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept), and Townhouse

Target Customer  : Medium-Low Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 1.0 — 2.5 Million Baht.

The Balcony Home

¢ % galcod e

By Lalin

Project Type : In town Townhouse

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.5 — 3.5 Million Baht.

LANCEO

[C‘_‘Z'.C%‘..D

Project Type : Detached House, Semi Detached House (new concept) under concept Modern Organic

Contemporary

Target Customer  : Medium-High Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 2.5 — 4.0 Million Baht.
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CRREY 1,720.40 2,322.20 2,365.60
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Project Type : Townhouse for young generation under concept “Modern Ecology”
Target Customer  : Medium-Low Income Segment. Selling price’s approximately 1.5 — 2.5 Million Baht.
LEVO Condo

Project Type : 8-storey Condominium. Under concept “Revolution of Life”

Target Customer  : Young generation who want to live in town, and close to electric train station. Selling price’s

approximately 1.8 — 3.0 Million Baht.

LIB Condo

Project Type : 8-storey Condominium. Under concept “Liberty of Living”

Target Customer  : Young generation who want to live in town, and close to electric train station. Selling price’s

approximately 1.4 — 2.5 Million Baht.

The company’s main revenue comes from the real estate business, which can be divided into four types of housing
products, namely, single homes, duplexes, townhouses and condominiums. The revenue from each type of product

can be summarized as follows:

Product Types

Million B Million B Million B
Revenue from Sales

Detached House 907.47 52.75% 1,190.34 51.25% 904.23 38.22%
Semi-Detached House 391.88 22.78% 483.79 20.83% 433.97 18.35%
Townhouse 319.92 18.60% 427.04 18.38% 522.30 22.08%
Condominium 101.13 5.88% 221.63 9.54% 505.10 21.35%

Total 1,720.40 2,322.20 2,365.60
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Summary of Overall Thai Economy

In 2014, the Thai economy grew by only 0.7 percent from the previous year. This is considered very small growth
in comparison with the country’s potential. And looking back to early 2014, many sectors projected growth by ap-
proximately 3.0-4.0 percent for the Thai economy in 2014 in line with the recovery of the economies of trade partners,
especially with the developed world, which would have improved Thai exports. Furthermore, in any regard, the growth

experienced by the Thai economy in 2013 did not go as many had expected due to several internal and external factors.

Growth rate of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in the past 7 years (Percent)

Q1 Q2 QK] Q4 Year
2008 6.4 5.2 2.9 -4.2 2.5
2009 =71 -4.9 -2.7 5.8 -2.3
2010 12.0 9.2 6.6 3.8 7.8
2011 3.2 2.7 3.7 -8.9 0.1
2012 0.4 4.4 3.1 19.1 6.5
2013 54 2.9 2.7 0.6 2.9
2014 -0.5 0.4 0.6 2.3 0.7

In terms of external factors, although the global economy in 2014 showed recovery from 2013, the recovery was
fragile. The US economy showed signs of improvements due to the steadily expanding economic foundations. The
growth in 2014 was 2.4 percent, which is an improvement from the previous year. The rate of unemployment rapidly
decreased from 6.6 percent early in the year to 5.6 percent by December 2014. This improved business and consumer
confidence in the US economy. Meanwhile, although the European economy in 2014 was an improvement from 2013,
growth was slower and more sluggish than predicted, partly due to international conflicts and issues concerning the
economic structures of Euro zone countries where long-term infrastructure solutions are needed. Furthermore, Japan’s
economy barely experienced growth in 2014 due to VAT raises during the second quarter of the year, which decreased
consumer and business spending, thereby causing the Japanese economy to experience recession for two consecutive
quarters during the second and third quarters. As a countermeasure, the Japanese government launched quantitative
easing as a counter in the fourth quarter and announced a delay in raising the VAT for another year and a half. Finally,
China’s economy grew by only 7.4 percent in 2014, which was decrease from 2013 with growth at 7.7 percent. The

decrease was due to the state’s reform measures seeking sustainable growth for the country’s economy.

As for internal factors during the first half of the country, Thailand was overwhelmed by intense and lengthy political
conflicts. Political demonstrations were ongoing since the end of 2013, which escalated after the government attempted
to pass an amnesty bill. The aforementioned unrest intensified rapidly and affected tourism and the confidence of con-
sumers and investors. The consequence was a clear slump in spending and investment during the first half of the year.
However, the second half of 2014 showed improvements in the Thai economy due to the resolution of the political situ-
ation and a return of the government’s ability to allocate budgets as normal. Nevertheless, the growth continued much
more slowly than the true economic potential of Thailand. Furthermore, the figures for exports, which account for over
seventy percent of the country’s total GDP, had yet to recover and the prices for many agricultural products dropped.
These factors affected farmers’ income and household spending.
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Private Consumption Index (% YoY)

20.00%
15.00%
10.00% A

5.00% \..\

0.00% T el m | \ A‘%

-5.00%

-10.00%

Jan 12
Apr 12
Jul 12
Oct 12
Jan 13
Apr 13
Jul 13
Oct 13
Jan 14
Apr 14
Jul 14
Oct 14

Hence, the various factors occurring in 2014 caused the Thai economy to slowdown. The slowdown occurred
in many aspects. Household spending in 2014 grew by only 0.3 percent, which is considered very low for a second
consecutive year. In 2012, the growth was 6.7 percent. Furthermore, household debts continued to increase until the
figures at the end of 2014 showed an increase in household debt to account for approximately 85 percent of the country’s
GDP. Therefore, households increased caution in spending and financial institutions increased stringency in releasing
personal consumer loans, which was an obstacle and caused decreased consumption. In terms of investment, the
business sector continued to show a slowdown as the recovery of the Thai economy was assessed. Consequently, the
investment figures in 2014 shrank consecutively for a second year, especially for state investments, which recessed by
up to 6.1 percent due to troubles during the first half of the year in budget allocation and investments.

Private Investment Index (% YoY)
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On the other hand, the overall stability of the economy in 2014 remained good domestically and abroad. For
domestic stability, the rate of unemployment was extremely low. In 2014, a total of 38.1 million people were employed,
which decreased slightly from the numbers in 2013 at approximately 38.9 million people. In any case, the rate of unem-
ployment was considered very low and calculated at only 0.84 percent. For inflation in 2014, general inflation equaled
1.88 percent and decreased consecutively for a second year. In 2012 and 2013, the value equaled 3.02 and 2.18, re-
spectively. Inflation decreased by a rather large percentage in 2014, especially during the final quarter of the year, due
to the large drop in energy prices in line with the global oil market. On the other hand, basic inflation in 2014 increased
slightly from 1.00 percent in 2013 to 1.59 percent in 2014, caused by increased food prices in line with increases in
cooking gas. In addition, financial stability also remained good with a slight increase in public debt from 45.7 percent
of the country’s GDP at the end of 2013 to 45.8 at the end of 2014.

The stability of foreign countries remained on a good level as well as the surplus balance of trade at 24,582.05
million USD from the greatly decreased imports in line with economic conditions and the extreme drop in oil prices
near the end of the year. As for service balance, primary and secondary income ran a deficit of 10,351.47 million USD.
This is an increase from the previous year with its deficit of 9,112.93 million USD and caused the balance and current
accounts in 2014 to exceed the balance by 14,230.59 million USD. On the other hand, capital and finance in 2014 ran
a rather large deficit from the over 14,142 million USD from 2012 down to only 1,236 million USD in 2013 and ran a
deficit of 15,363.38 million USD in 2014. This was caused by the fact that Thai investors began to increasingly seek gain
abroad in the forms of both direct investment and stock investments in order to obtain higher returns in countries with
low interest rates. At the same time, foreign investors continued to sell net Thai securities since the previous year due
to domestic political problems. Therefore, the net outgoing capital and finance of 15,363.38 million dollars rose higher
than the surplus and balance of trade by a total of 14,230.59 million USD. This resulted for a 2014 deficit payment bal-
ance of 1,210.20 million USD, which is a decrease from the value in 2013 that ran a deficit of 5,049.1 million USD.

Summary table of Economic overview in 2014

2013 | 2014

Thailand GDP Growth 29| 0.7, 54| 29| 27| 06| -05 04| 06| 23

Demand (Expenditure)
Private Consumption 0.3 0.3 4.4 25| -1.2] 45| -3.0 0.2 2.2 1.9
Government Consumption 4.9 2.8 2.9 7.6 7.3 0.9 4.2 2.1 0.4 5.5
Investment in fixed assets 20| -2.8 5.8 47| -6.3| -11.3| -93| -6.9 2.9 3.2
Change in inventories 107.3-115.2] 19.1| 13.7| 60.2| 825| -81.5-246.4| 89.8| -84.2
Export of goods and services 4.2 0.0 8.3 2.9 3.8 20| -05| -06| -3.8 4.9
- Goods (f.0.b.) 02| 09, 37| 15| -14| 02| 08 15| -14] 238
- Services 19.7] -2.8| 25.7| 224| 252| 80| 44, -78|-11.7| 114
Import of goods and services 23| -4.8 8.1 4.5 08| -35| -86| -90, -1.1| -0.3
- Goods (c.i.f.) 18| -6.3| 95| 44| -05| -53| -12|-108| -1.6| -04
- Services 5.2 3.3 1.2 5.3 8.1 6.3| 104 1.2 1.7 0.3

Supply (Production)

Agriculture 1.4 141 08| 254 -03| 23| 14| 42| 16| -16
Non-Agriculture 3.0/ 07| 58| 30| 304 04| -06| 0.1 05| 27
- Construction 1.0/ -38| 105| 5b.0| -22| -7.7|-119| -32| -2.7| 37
- Property for rent 4.5 0.4 5.3 4.4 4.4 44| 16| -0.7 0.2 3.?1
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2013 2014

Internal Stability

Headline Inflation 2.18| 1.89| 3.10| 2.31| 1.67| 1.68 20| 247| 2.03| 113
Core Inflation 1.00| 1.59| 1.46| 1.00| 0.74| 0.82| 1.19| 1.71| 1.79| 1.65
Unemployment Rate (%) 0.72| 0.86| 0.72| 0.74| 0.77| 0.65| 0.85| 1.09| 0.87| 0.62
Public Debt (Billion Baht) 5,450 | 5,624 | 5,121 5,225 5,431 | 5,450 | 5,550 | 5,655 | 5,691 | 5,624
Per GDP (%) 45.71|46.32|44.16 | 44.27| 45.49| 45.71 | 46.48 | 47.08 | 47.18 | 46.32

External Stability (Billion U.S.Dollar)

Trade Balance 6.35| 2.46| -1.57| -0.96| 5.03| 3.85| 0.63| 0.59| 0.48| 0.76
Current Account Balance -2.79| 142 0.07| -717| -0.89| 5.20| 0.55| -0.06| -0.05| 0.98
Capital Account 0.27| 0.01] 0.01| 0.12| 0.14| 0.00| 0.00| 0.00| 0.01| 0.00
Financial Account 114 -1.54| 3.79| 5.20| 0.17] -8.01| -0.75| 0.10| -0.19| -0.70
Balance of Payment -5.05| -0.12| 2.60| -2.44| -1.95| -3.26| -0.05| -0.06| 0.00| -0.02
Foreign Exchange Reserves 167.2{157.1|177.8| 170.8| 172.3 | 167.2| 167.5| 168.2 | 161.6 | 157.1

External Debt

- Foreign Exchange Reserves per
Short term Debt (Times) 2.8 - 2.9 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.8 2.7 2.7 -

- External Debt per GDP (%) 38.2 39.6| 39.3| 39.0| 38.7| 38.1| 39.2| 38.7 -

Meanwhile, the direction of the Thai economy in 2015 is likely to show better growth than in 2014, which grew
significantly less than expected due to sluggish export and delayed budget allocation of the government as a result
of the political conflicts early in the year. The aforementioned affected the confidence of consumers and businesses.
In 2014, hardly any growth was experienced by the household consumption figures, and investment figures shrank. In
2015, exports show signs of improvement from 2014 in line with the recovery of the global economy, especially the US
economy. Furthermore, the political conflicts are less risky than the previous year. The more peaceful politics would
increase entrepreneur and consumer confidence and for them to dare to invest and increase spending. In addition, it is
expected that in 2015, the government will be required to accelerate their budget spending to stimulate the economy
and invest in basic communication infrastructure, whether in electric trains, dual rail transport, route development to
link up main cities and support for international trade relations in order for Thailand to become the center of the region
before launching the ASEAN Economic Community or “AEC” in early 2016. According to the latest numbers released

by the Bank of Thailand, the Thai economy is expected to grow by about 3.9 percent between the ranges of 3.4-4.4.

However, the recovery of the Thai economy in 2015 will still have to face many risk factors, e.g., the recovery of the
country’s exports still face risks from the economies of countries in Europe, Japan, and China; decreasing gas prices
cause many export items to decrease as well, e.g., petroleum and chemical products. In addition, there are risks on
the aspect of weakening household purchasing power, lowering agricultural product prices, which impact the farmers’
income, along with rapidly increasing household debts that now account to about 85 percent of the country’s GDP with
a trend of reaching 88 percent of the GDP by the end of 2015, which could be harmful to household consumption.
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1. a59lnegilsznaums (AR|ss)

- fhutRen 11,403| 13,999| 10,887| 13,869| 13,449
- Ui 1,366 1,381 1,069 2,470 2,776
- mailidduazatanswaiiae 11,707 11,614 11,218 21238 17,329
- 81A97A 59,919| 34,734| 78,391| 71440| 72,921
sanssinnasalaadilssnaums 84,395 61,728 101,565 109,017 | 106,475
2. g519lneilsanduasnaag
- fuden 20,284| 17,814 20,858| 17,596| 21,003
- tuuele 154 81 104 131 86
- mMadliEnduazaimswi il 2,060 2,233 2,475 5,558 3,810
sauilszinnilssagudsnaag 22,498| 20,128| 23,437 23,285 24,899
squﬁagmﬁ’m%qm’éqqmmﬁauﬁ"’mm 106,893 81,856| 125,002 132,302| 131,374

ansamarlasuunilas (% Yov)

1. a59lnegilssnaums (An|ss)

- fIuien 497%| 22.77%| -22.23%| 27.39%| -3.03%
- tuuee 36.60%| 1.10%| -22.59%| 131.06%| 12.39%
- MaliEndiLazaiA Wil 19.81%| -0.79%| -3.41%| 89.32% | -18.41%
- 81AN9YA 11.53%| -42.03%| 125.69%| -8.87%| 2.07%
sanszinnasulaegilssnaums 11.99%| -26.86%| 64.54%| 7.34% -2.33%
2. g59lpalseangudsaiag
- fhuiden 11.85%| -12.18%| 17.09%| -15.64%| 19.36%
- Tulie 11.59%| -47.40%| 28.40%| 25.96% | -34.35%
- malidrduazatansnnciaed 53.16%| 8.40%| 10.84%| 124.57%| -31.45%
sanlszinnilszdngudsnaiag 14.68%| -10.53%| 16.44%| -0.65%| 6.93%
squﬁagimﬁ’m%ma?qqmmnﬁauﬁ”’mum 12.55% | -23.42%| 52.71%| 5.84%| -0.70%

as

pduIRIMsAANzIlauNataAauaazlssLAn

- fhwiden 29.64%| 38.86%| 25.40%| 23.78%| 26.22%
- tuuee 1.42%|  1.79%| 0.94%| 1.97%| 2.18%
-malidduazatanswciaed 12.88%| 16.92%| 10.95%| 20.25%| 16.09%
- 81PN 56.06% | 42.43%| 62.71%| 54.00%| 55.51%

100.00%| 100.00%| 100.00% | 100.00%| 100.00%
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Overview of Real Estate Industry
Condition of Real Estate Industry in 2014
Registered housing units in the Bangkok and Vicinities

Number of newly completed and registered housing units in Bangkok and Vicinities during year 2010-2014

‘ 2010 ‘ 2011 ‘ 2012 ‘ 2013 ‘ 2014

Number of newly completed and registered housing (units)

1. Built by Developers

- Detached house 11,403 13,999 10,887 13,869 13,449
- Semi-detached house 1,366 1,381 1,069 2,470 2,776
- Townhouse and shop house 11,707 11,614 11,218 21,238 17,329
- Condominium 59,919| 34,734| 78,391 71,440 72,921
Total of building by developers 84,395| 61,728| 101,565| 109,017 | 106,475

2. Private construction

- Detached house 20,284 17,814 20,858 17,596 21,003
- Semi-detached house 154 81 104 131 86
- Townhouse and shop house 2,060 2,233 2,475 5,558 3,810
Total for private construction 22,498 20,128 23,437 23,285 24,899
Total of newly completed and registered housing 106,893 81,856 | 125,002 132,302 131,374

Rate of change (%)

1. Built by Developers

- Detached house 497%| 22.77%)| -22.23%| 27.39%| -3.03%
- Semi-detached house 36.60% 1.10%| -22.59%| 131.06%| 12.39%
- Townhouse and shop house 19.81%| -0.79%| -3.41%| 89.32%| -18.41%
- Condominium 11.53%| -42.03%| 125.69%| -8.87% 2.07%
Total of building by developers 11.99% | -26.86%| 64.54% 7.34%| -2.33%

2. Private construction

- Detached house 11.85%| -12.18%| 17.09%| -15.64%| 19.36%
- Semi-detached house 11.59%| -47.40%| 28.40%| 25.96%| -34.35%
- Townhouse and shop house 53.16% 8.40% | 10.84%| 124.57%| -31.45%
Total for private construction 14.68% | -10.53%| 16.44%| -0.65% 6.93%
Total of newly completed and registered housing 12.55% | -23.42%| 52.71% 5.84%| -0.70%
- Detached house 29.64%| 38.86%| 25.40%| 23.78%| 26.22%
- Semi-detached house 1.42% 1.79% 0.94% 1.97% 2.18%
- Townhouse and shop house 12.88%| 16.92%| 10.95%| 20.25%| 16.09%
- Condominium 56.06%| 42.43%| 62.71%| 54.00%| 55.51%

100.00%| 100.00%| 100.00% | 100.00%| 100.00%
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According to figures of completed residences in within Bangkok and Metropolitan by the Real Estate Information
Center (REIC), the registered number of constructions by entrepreneurs (distributed) in 2014 equal 106,475 units. This
was a decrease from 2013, which equaled 109,017 units, by about 2.33 percent. The primary cause was the decrease
in horizontal products, especially for townhouse products which greatly increased in 2013. Meanwhile, the number of
registered apartment buildings stabilized from the previous year. In 2014, the total number of registered apartments
was 72,921 units, while the number of registered apartment buildings in 2013 equaled 71,440 units, or an increase by
2.07 percent. The number of registered horizontal residences, on the other hand, showed a decrease. The details are
as follows: The number of registered single homes constructed by entrepreneurs in 2014 equaled 13,449 units, which
is a slight decrease from the previous year by 3.03 percent. The number of registered townhouses and commercial
buildings constructed by entrepreneurs in 2014 equaled 17,329 units, which is a rather large decrease from the previous
year or a recession of about 18.41 percent. Hence, there were higher foundations in the previous year when registra-
tion of townhouses and commercial buildings increased from 2012 by up to 89.32 percent, the number of registered
buildings was high as a result of townhouses within and on the borders of limits replacing certain types of apartment
buildings because the price of apartments within the building greatly increased in the past several years as a result of
skyrocketing land prices. This caused for entrepreneurs to reduce the amount of space for each unit in order for sale
prices to remain on a level acceptable by consumers. Therefore, townhouses, which provide more suitable space for
living at prices considered acceptable by consumers, began to replace condominium markets in part. As for the number
of registered buildings constructed by the people themselves in 2014, the number totaled at 24,899 units, which is an
increase from the previous year by 6.93 percent.

When looking at the ratios for each type of registered resident building, we find the ratio of registered apartment
buildings to remain over 50 percent high among the total number of registered buildings. In 2014, the ratio of regis-
tered single homes was 26.22 percent of all registered buildings, which is an increase from the previous year by 23.78
percent, while the ratio of registered duplex homes was 2.18 percent of all registrations, which is an increase from the
previous year by 1.97 percent. Furthermore, the ratio of registered townhouses and commercial buildings equaled 16.09
percent of all registrations, a decrease from the previous year, which was 20.25 percent. The ratio of registered apart-
ment buildings increased slightly with the ratio of 55.51 percent of all registered buildings. The value for the previous
year was 54.00 percent.

Hence, according to survey data on newly launched projects in Bangkok and Metropolitan of Agency for Real
Estate Affairs Co., Ltd. in 2014, the amount of newly opened supply for sale was 114,094 units. This is a decrease from
2013 by 13.3 percent. Condominium is still the most sold product at 65,298 newly opened units for sale (decrease of
22.5 from 2013), which accounts to 57.23 percent of all units open for sale in 2014. On the other hand, 13,830 units of
single homes are newly opened for sale (increase of 8.1 percent from 2013). Each type of product can be calculated
as ratio per total number of units open for sale of 12.12, 4.47 and 23.78 respectively.

New Supplies in the Bangkok and Vicinities (Separated by types)

Launched in 2013 Launched in 2014 Growth (%)

Detached House 12,789 13,830 8.1%
Semi-detached House 4,437 5,103 15.0%
Townhouse 28,047 27,136 -3.2%
Shop house 2,027 2,679 32.2%
Condominium 84,250 65,298 -22.5%
Vacant land 95 48 -49.5%

Total 131,645 114,094 -13.3%

Source : Agency for real estate (AREA)

New Mortgage Loan in the Bangkok and Vicinities (Separated by types)
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Real Estate Industry Trends in 2015
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In 2015, the real estate industry promises trends for better growth than 2014. Many negative factors affect the
industrial sector. The growth in 2015 has supporting factors from increased political stability from the previous year
and investment in public utilities and basic infrastructure by the government, whether it is railroad expansion, auction-
ing and construction of new electric train construction projects, development of the dual rail tracks, including plans for
new road constructions to link economic districts, which will reestablish confidence in consumers and entrepreneurs.
In addition, the world economy is showing signs of recovery, especially the US economy in terms of exports and the
overall picture of the Thai economy. Furthermore, low interest rates and the Monetary Policy Committee’s possibility of
relaxing financial policies later on in 2015 to stimulate economic growth, along with the low inflation due to the prices of

oil that decreased by over half, will support the real estate business.

In any case, the real estate sector in 2015 will continue to face risks from various negative factors, e.g., high house-
hold debt of up to 85 percent of the GDP, which will hinder consumer purchasing power and cause commercial banks
to increase stringency in releasing loans to people who want to buy homes. Moreover, the fact that the real estate and
the business sectors grow in the same direction of the economy combined with the ongoing uncertainty of the global

and Thai economies in 2015, this issue should be closely monitored in the future.
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Risk Factors

In the business operation of the Company, the potential risks affecting to the operation of the Company in the

future are as followed;

1. Risks arising from economic slow-down

The real estate business is a business sector that is closely linked to and moves in the same direction as
economic conditions. If the overall economic conditions are recessed or sluggish, confidence and consumer
purchasing power will be affected because decisions to buy homes are long-term commitments. Therefore, if the
economy or future economic directions slow down, consumers will delay their purchases of homes as they wait
out the situation. In 2014, especially during the first half of the year, the Thai economy was affected by political
conflicts, lengthy protests and closure of various main roads in Bangkok, which affected the tourism sector, state
finance and investment, including the confidence of entrepreneurs and consumers. Consequently, the country’s
economic growth during the first quarter to shrank down to only 0.5 percent before gradually improving in the
remaining part of the year. Nevertheless, the Thailand’s economic growth in 2014 was only 0.7 percent, which is

considered much lower than the country’s true potential.

Although less than in 2014, the country’s risk for economic recession in 2015 remains a factor to be closely
monitored and assessed. If chaotic or unexpected situations occur and cause a recession preventing projected
economic growth, consumers may delay their purchases. However, the company has always closely monitored
both domestic and foreign economic risks; and the company gives consideration during meetings of company
directors and managing directors to assessing economic conditions and future trends. These assessments are
usually carried out twice each month by using the aforementioned risks in planning and changing the organization’s

strategies in order to properly maintain concurrence with economic conditions.
2. Risks arising from political conflict in Thailand

Early in 2014, political protests demanding national reform took place. The protests stemmed from political
conflicts near the end of 2013 when the government tried to pass an amnesty bill and ignited the protests. Although
the prime minister dissolved Parliament on 9 December 2013, protestors escalated their activities to demand the
resignation of the prime minister and the Council of Ministers to create a political vacuum and demanded reforms
before election. The situation extended into 2014 with protestors closing off main roads in Bangkok as violence
was instigated in various areas by ill-wishers, thereby causing injuries and death. The conflict broadened to the
point of a military coup on 22 May 2014 by the National Council for Peace and Order with General Prayuth Chan
O-cha as the head of the council. The aforementioned disorder early in the year severely affected the national
economy as a whole, including the real estate sector. Most entrepreneurs delayed launching new projects and

consumers postponed their decisions to buy homes in order to wait for the situation to return to normal.

In 2015, risks from internal political conflicts are largely put to rest in comparison to 2014 because the country
is still under the control of the National Council for Peace and Order and martial law to maintain peace and order.
However, conflicts still exist. If political unrest intensifies once again, consumer confidence will be affected. This
may affect the company’s new sales total. Nevertheless, the company’s strategy for the past couple of years has
involving investment expansion to provincial markets in various provinces with potential such as Chonburi, Rayong,
Chasoengsao, Nakhon Ratchasima, etc. is considered a geographic management of risks because provincial

markets are less affected by political conflicts than Bangkok Metropolitan, which sets the stage for political protests.
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Furthermore, the company has distributed risks by opening up new upstream and downstream market segments
by launching high-end housing projects, single-floor homes, single-floor duplex homes and single-floor townhouse
projects in the provinces. This has allowed the company to provide extensive coverage for all products in which

prices range from one to twelve million baht.
Risks arising from more stringent loan offerings by commercial banks

Commercial banks have recently become stricter in their consideration of credit and loans concerning
both loans for entrepreneurs (pre-finance) and loans for consumers (post-finance). Furthermore, it is likely that
commercial banks will become even more stringent in 2014. In terms of pre-financing, commercial banks began
to increase stringency in financial support for projects during the past year by setting various additional terms,
particularly for groups of people with no previous experience in the real estate business and groups of non-listed
companies. Hence, those companies are finding it more and more difficult to access sources of financial support
which can be considered an advantage for the industrial sector in helping to increase market supply. Business-
wise, risks are incurred with such low access to monetary sources. Due to the Company’s strong financial status,
our debt-equity ratio is very low in comparison to the industry average. Furthermore, the Company has a good
history of long-term financial discipline without ever applying for debt restructuring or non-performing loans with
any financial institution, even in during the economic crisis in 1997. Hence, the Company is well-known by various
commercial banks. Apart from this, the Company has made succinct financial plans with preparation of sufficient
liquidity and in concurrence with the Company’s plans for business growth. Moreover, the Company has also
prepared sufficient long- and short-term lines of credit for business growth in line with the Company’s plans,

including sufficient liquidity to handle severe economic deceleration.

In terms of credit for consumers (post finance) last couple year, commercial banks have also been stricter
in their considerations, partly due to the figures for household debts which escalated late last year. The current
conditions in which the personal credit industry is enjoying rapid growth have had impact on consumer spending
behavior where consumers spend money in advance via personal credit, e.g. credit cards and various personal
loans, and this has had the effect of reducing the home buying power of consumers. At the same time, commercial
banks have stricter criteria in considering loans for people who want to buy homes. For home purchases, most
customers need to rely on loans from commercial banks for approximately 90 — 95 percent of the home price.
Therefore, the Company’s realized income inevitably depends upon the consideration of commercial banks in
granting loans. If commercial banks become stricter, the Company'’s realized income may be reduced in conjunction
with sales due to some customers who are refused loans by commercial banks. Nevertheless, the Company has
closely monitored consumer conditions and the policy of each commercial bank in granting loans in order to revise
policy as suitable for each period of time. In addition, the Company cooperated with some commercial banks in
order to propose special conditions for customers buying homes in the Company’s projects, e.g. granting loans

for 100 percent of the home price at a lower interest rate than the market and step payment programs, etc.
Risk arising from the control measure of loan to value (LTV) ratio

In November, 2010, Bank of Thailand (BOT.) has established the control measure to prevent the economic
bubble in real estate business by issuing the criteria supervising commercial banks in home loan at the price
below 10 million Baht. It determines that housing loan for condominium must not be over 90% of the security value.
This is effective since January 1, 2011 onwards. Afterwards, there is the 1-year extension of enforcement period
for the horizontal accommodation, so it will be effective in 2013. The enforcement of this LTV measure is not the
control of loan as specified in the measure only, but if the commercial banks loan in the specified LTV criteria, the
calculation of BIS ration will be only 35% of the loan. If the commercial banks loan over the specified LTV criteria,
the calculation of BIS ration will be added to 75% of the loan. This affects to the ratio of capital dividing by BIS

ration and the capital of commercial banks will increase.
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The result of such LTV control measure will make persons requiring home purchase to save more money
before buying houses. In case that the loan request is in the amount higher than that specified by the measure,
commercial banks may loan in the higher interest rate in order to compensate such increasing capital. However,
the Company believes that the issuance of LTV control measure will produce advantages to the housing business
in the long term. The Company is quite limited to the risk affected from such measure because most products of
the Company is in the group of horizontal accommodation and customers are in the real demand group purchasing
for the actual application. These customers normally decide before purchasing the accommodations and have
some savings. Previously, the customers will deposit the down payment not less than 5-10% to the project, so the

impact of LTV measure is limited.
Risks arising from interest rate fluctuation

In 2014, the monetary policy committee, Bank of Thailand, reduced policy rate from 2.25% to 2.00% on the
meeting held on March 12, 2014. And remain at this rate until the end of year. The rate at 2.00% is the lowest rate
in more than 3 years. For the minimum loan rate (MLR) of commercial banks, which is the factor influencing on
ability to purchase of consumers, was reduced from 6.875% at the beginning of year to 6.75% at the end of year.

(refer rate from Bangkok Bank).

Regarding to the fluctuation of interest rate, if it increases, it may affect to the ability to accommodation
purchase of consumers, including the financial cost of the Company. However, the risk factor in this aspect was
limited in 2015 from the tendency of possibly stable or slightly decreased interest rate for the purpose of stimulating
economy. In addition, since the liability of the Company was in the low level, the interest expenses were also low
comparing to the revenue of the Company. Plus, the Company strictly managed the risk from interest fluctuation
and its financial liquidity, for example, issuing long-term bonds, selling bill of exchange for short-term liquidity
adjustment and financial cost reduction, discussing with financial institutes for making long-term agreement
with a stable interest rate, regularly following up domestic and international financial circumstance. These issues
were discussed in the meeting of Executive Committee every time in order to evaluate and manage situations

appropriately and promptly.
Risks arising from the rise of construction cost

During year 2011 — 2012, the price of main construction materials increased due to the production cost
(cost push), the governmental policy on the increment of minimum wage to 300 Baht/day, the increased price of
oil, and so on. Moreover, the rise of construction material price also resulted from the demand pull from the real
estate sector which constructed more condominiums and horizontal projects, repaired damages arising from
the flood crisis, and used in the construction of large public utility project of the Government. Nevertheless, in
2014, particularly during the second half of the year, the price for crude oil plummeted. The crude oil Brent price
dropped from approximately 110 USD per barrel at midyear to only approximately 57 USD per barrel by the end
of 2014. This is considered its lowest value in over five years. Since oil is more or less considered a cost for nearly
every product, the aforementioned decreases in oil price caused nearly every type of construction material to
drop significantly to reflect the drop in production costs due to the aforementioned drop in oil prices. As for 2015,
oil prices are expected to remain low at least until midyear. And since the economy remains unable to rapidly
take off on its path to recovery, risks due to construction costs may increase with limitations for 2015. Also the
Company strictly managed the risk of construction material cost by mostly purchasing main materials on its own.
Since the Company had many projects, the negotiation power was fairly high and it was able to agree with the
seller for big lot purchase. In addition, the Company closely followed up the movement of major construction
material price, both the domestic and international marketing direction. In case the Company considered and
discovered that the price tendency would be higher, it would establish the fixed price in advance. The Company
would negotiate with suppliers for important products, such as, steel, floor deck, roof, etc., in order to determine
the suitable price. Additionally, the Company attempts to find other qualified alternative products and apply new
construction technologies as appropriate.
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Risks arising from lack of skilled labors in construction works

The unemployed rate in Thailand has been in the low level for consecutive years which cause the lack of labors
in some fields of work. In addition, by reason of the expanding in construction and real estate sector, the expanding
investment in large public utility projects, both roads and railway mass transportation system, of the Government,
and the improving growth of the agricultural sector, some labors in the construction sector move to their hometowns
for operating agriculture. As a result, the lack of labor in the construction sector was increasingly severe in the past
few years. It is estimated that this issue will continue to the year 2015. However, the Company has the policy of
risk management in this aspect by applying new construction technologies to replace some previous construction
system, which can reduce labors. For example, the tunnel form construction system is applied to the construction of
town houses and the precast system is applied to the construction of single houses and condominiums. Moreover,
the Company assigns the section responsible for supervising and studying new construction technologies, both
domestic and international, in order to consider the appropriateness and application. Additionally, the Company
plans to retain the former contractors by continuously and regularly assigning construction works so that contractors
are able to support their own labors, building the good relationship with contractors of the Company; such as,
holding banquets, awarding contractors having the best performance; and distributing construction works based
on skills and abilities of each contractor. The Company will also establish project construction manager, project
engineer, head of project construction supervisor, construction works supervisor, and quality control officers to
control and oversee construction works of contractors so that the quality of construction works of each contractor

will be assured.
Risks arising from natural disasters

At the end of the year 2011, Thailand suffered from the most severe flood crisis in 50 years, which widely
caused impacts and damages totaling over 1.2 trillion Baht. The real estate sector was affected directly and
indirectly from this situation, resulting to the buying decision of consumers, especially the project located in the
severe flood-affected area. In addition, some consumers decided to change locations from severe flood-affected
area to no flood-affected area. Some consumers changed their minds to buy accommodation in form of condominium

instead. However, this risk factor is limit in present situation.

Regarding to the Company, the risk management is provided to various aspects, such as, the project opening
in many areas, which is the original business operation principle of the Company. As a result, the impact of the
flood is limited to some projects only. Many projects of the Company are located in no flood-affected areas. It is
considered to be the management of risk sharing in terms of location which the Company is aware of this prior to
the flood situation. Additionally, the Company also shared the risk of products by expanding more vertical projects
in 2012. Furthermore, the Company also expanded the projects to the region market where 8 projects have been

launched in the Eastern part and North-eastern part of Thailand.
Risk arising from the construction of pre-built homes

Following the economic crisis, most entrepreneurs apply the strategy of semi-pre-built homes to create the
confidence of consumers. Such strategy is necessary to spend the high cost which probably causes the risk of
financial liquidity and the risk arising from the changing behavior of consumers. However, the Company has the
low level of such risk because the Company has studied the behavior of consumers thoroughly and established
the construction plan efficiently. The plan is to combine the products, such as, pre-built home, semi pre-built home,
and built-to-order home. The beginning of the construction depends on the estimation of sales. In addition, since
the Company has the low ratio of liability per capital, the strict policy of cash flow management, and the large
amount of excess equity in any financial institutes, so the Company has the extremely low risk of financial liquidity

shortage.
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10. Risk factor from land procurement for project development

providing new developed utilities, such as, extension line of BTS, new line of BTS, extension line of roads
and expressways, etc., dramatically increased since the economy and real estate business expanded by reasons
of the increasing accommodation demand of citizens and the expansion of regional market. This resulted to the

higher price of lands in provincial areas which increased rapidly in such period.

In addition, land procurement for project development is necessary to carefully study the use of such land,
including the financial and marketing feasibility, and also consider relevant laws, such as, City Planning Act,
etc. However, the new City Planning Act which was announced in 2013 has been modified the use of land in
some locations. In acquiring land, it's necessary to study of land use act. Some types of accommodation may
be unable to construct in some locations. Also has to study the provisions of Floor Area Ratio — FAR and Open
Space Ratio — OSR, including the provisions of the environment permit. All of these are risks that may occur from
land acquisition. Nevertheless, the Company strictly manages the risk from land purchase by studying marketing
feasibility, deeply analyzing returns obtained from the investment of each land, and studying limitations of laws
and other regulations of each land before buying. The decision of land purchase will be considered carefully and

approved by the Executive Committee.
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Shareholding Structure and Management

Corporate securities
1.  Ordinary Shares

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had registered capital equivalent to 925,000,000 Baht, of which
825,000,000 Baht was paid-up. This comprises 825,000,000 ordinary shares carrying a par value of 1 Baht per

share.

According to Thai NVDR Co., Ltd.’s data, 20,616,300 of the Company’s ordinary shares were held by investors
investing through non-voting depository receipts (NVDRs) as of August 29, 2014, representing 13.89% of all paid-
up shares. As such shares are not entitled to a voting right (except for a decision to delist the stock), the holders of
non-NVDR shares have 2.50% more of the voting right. As a result, holders of only 24.38% of the paid-up ordinary
shares will have a voting right equal to 25% of all voting shares. The investors can check the most updated names
of company’s stock holders investing through Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. at The Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website

(www.set.or.th)
2. Debentures
As of December 31, 2014, the company had outstanding debentures of 1,780 Million Baht as below.

2.1) Unsecured debentures No.1/2012 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public

Company Limited No. 1/2012 Due B.E. 2015

Types of Debenture

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without

debenture holder’s representative Debentures

Amount

300,000 Units

Subscription Price

1,000 Baht

Value 300 Million Baht
Offering Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
Issue Date July 13, 2012

Maturity Date

July 15, 2015

Interest Rate

Fixed coupon rate of 5.25%

Interest Payment

Quarterly

Principal Payment

Bullet principal payment at maturity on July 15, 2015

Early Redemption

None

Underwriter

Asia Plus Securities Public Company Limited

Registrar

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market

Thai BMA
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2.2)

Unsecured debentures No.2/2012 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public
Company Limited No. 2/2012 Due B.E. 2015

Types of Debenture

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without]

debenture holder’s representative Debentures

Amount

500,000 Units

Subscription Price

1,000 Baht

Value 500 Million Baht
Offering Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
Issue Date September 13, 2012

Maturity Date

September 13, 2015

Interest Rate

Fixed coupon rate of 5.30%

Interest Payment

Quarterly

Principal Payment

Bullet principal payment at maturity on September 13, 2015

Early Redemption

None

Underwriter CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Registrar Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market

Thai BMA

2.3)

Unsecured debentures No.1/2013 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public
Company Limited No. 1/2013 Due B.E. 2016

Types of Debenture

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without]

debenture holder’s representative Debentures

Amount

630,000 Units

Subscription Price

1,000 Baht

Value 630 Million Baht
Offering Private Placement to Institute Investor and High net worth (II/HNW)
Issue Date July 26, 2013

Maturity Date

July 26, 2016

Interest Rate

Fixed coupon rate of 4.75%

Interest Payment

Quarterly

Principal Payment

Bullet principal payment at maturity on July 26, 2016

Early Redemption

None

Underwriter Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited
Registrar Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market

Thai BMA
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2.4)

Unsecured debentures No.1/2014 Series 1 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public
Company Limited No. 1/2014 Series 1 Due B.E. 2017

Types of Debenture

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without

debenture holder’s representative Debentures

Amount 50,000 Units

Subscription Price 1,000 Baht

Value 50 Million Baht

Offering Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
Issue Date August 5, 2014

Maturity Date

May 9, 2017

Interest Rate

Fixed coupon rate of 4.22%

Interest Payment

Semi-Annually

Principal Payment

Bullet principal payment at maturity on May 9, 2017

Early Redemption

None

Underwriter

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Registrar

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market

Thai BMA

2.5)

Unsecured debentures No.1/2014 Series 2 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public
Company Limited No. 1/2014 Series 2 Due B.E. 2017

Types of Debenture

Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without

debenture holder’s representative Debentures

Amount

200,000 Units

Subscription Price

1,000 Baht

Value 200 Million Baht
Offering Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
Issue Date August 5, 2014

Maturity Date

August 22, 2017

Interest Rate

Fixed coupon rate of 4.22%

Interest Payment

Semi-Annually

Principal Payment

Bullet principal payment at maturity on August 22, 2017

Early Redemption

None

Underwriter

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Registrar

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market

Thai BMA
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1 |wwlaedud mmma 283,502,750 34.36
2 lweviadng Jrssaanaad 233,502,750 28.30
3 |wwsunge laanssen 26,347,600 3.19
4 Mr. Kenneth Rudy Kamon 22,858,100 2.77
5 131 Ineduinens anrn 20,616,300 2.50
6 | WnegNIA IAANDTLE 19,329,100 234
7 WA NTUN JHITAANNA 18,285,100 2.22
8 | ABN AMRO NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 15,500,000 1.88
9 |UBS (LUXEMBOURG) S.A 14,000,000 1.70
10 | newnuiEla suT7A Low Beta 11,536,400 1.40
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2.6)

Unsecured debentures No.2/2014 Details of debentures as below.

Debentures’ name

Unsubordinated and Unsecured Debentures of Lalin Property Public
Company Limited No. 2/2014 Due B.E. 2017

Types of Debenture Name registered certificate, Unsubordinated, Unsecured, and without
debenture holder’s representative Debentures
Amount 100,000 Units

Subscription Price

1,000 Baht

Value 100 Million Baht
Offering Private Placement to not more than 10 investors (PP10)
Issue Date October 2, 2014

Maturity Date

October 10, 2017

Interest Rate

Fixed coupon rate of 4.00%

Interest Payment

Semi-Annually

Principal Payment

Bullet principal payment at maturity on October 10, 2017

Early Redemption

None

Underwriter

Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited

Registrar

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Secondary Market

Thai BMA

Top 10 major Shareholders as of August 29, 2014

As of August 29, 2014, the top 10 Shareholders as recorded in the Shareholder Registrar are presented

as follows.
Name of Shareholder Number of Shares
1 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 283,502,750 34.36
2 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 233,502,750 28.30
3 Mr.Tanakrit Saimuckka 26,347,600 3.19
4 Mr. Kenneth Rudy Kamon 22,858,100 2.77
5 | Thai NVDR Co.,Ltd. 20,616,300 2.50
6 Mr.Supoth Lerdritipan 19,329,100 2.34
7 Ms.Pornchanok Watcharakkawong 18,285,100 2.22
8 | ABN AMRO NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 15,500,000 1.88
9 | UBS (LUXEMBOURG) S.A 14,000,000 1.70
10 |Thanachart Low Beta Fund 11,536,400 1.40
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Company has group of shareholder which might vote in the same direction as follow.

Name of Shareholder Number of Shares

Group of Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong

1 Mr.Taveesak Watcharakkawong 233,502,750 28.30
2 Ms.Pornchanok Watcharakkawong 18,285,100 2.22
3 Mrs.Paetai Watcharakkawong 5,000,000 0.61

Group of Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul

1 Mr.Chaiyan Chakarakul 283,502,750 34.36
2 Mrs.Kannika Chakarakul 5,000,000 0.61
3 Mr.Churat Chakarakul 2,500,000 0.30
4 Miss.Usana Chakarakul 2,500,000 0.30

Dividend payment policy

The Company has a policy to provide dividends in the rate of not less than 30 percent of net profit after taxes,
barring any exceptional circumstances and so long as such payment does not significantly affect the normal operations
of the Company. The decision to offer dividends takes into account various factors, such as the Company’s operating
performance and financial status; liquidity; business expansion; and other factors relating to corporate administration.
The dividend pay-out must be approved by Shareholders as appropriate, as well as the Board of Directors. In 2014,
the Company announced a dividend payment to Shareholders in the rate of 0.27 Baht per share. Under normal condi-
tions, the Company’s shares provide a dividend that is higher than the interest deposit rate quoted by most commercial

banks.

Historical Dividend Payments

‘ 2008 ‘ 2009 ‘ 2010 ‘

Net Profit / Share (Baht) 0.2168 0.3018 0.3958 0.3557 0.3263 0.5083 0.5271

Dividend Paid / Share (Baht) 0.09 0.135 0.185 0.18 0.18 0.245 0.27

Dividend Paid / Net Profit (%) 41.51% | 44.73% | 46.74% | 50.60% | 55.16% | 48.20% | 51.22%
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Management Structure

1) The Board of Directors

In 2014, the Board of Directors convened a total of 5 meetings and as of December 31, 2014, the

Board had 7 members. Of this number, 3 were Independent Directors, with details as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong Chairman

2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & Executive Chairman

3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
5. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
6. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Director & Executive Director

7. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Director & Executive Director

Mr. Seri Sintuas serves as Company Secretary.

Name of d

irectors authorized to enter into binding obligations

(1) Two of these three directors, namely, Mr. Taveesak Wacharakawong, Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul and Mr. Nat

Sangarsongkogk, must sign together with company seal affixed. There are no limitations to director authority.

(2)  One of these three directors, namely, Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul or Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk or Mr.Churat

Chakarakul, signs with the company’s seal affixed on the following matters:

2.1

22

2.3

24

2.5

Requests for temporary or permanent use of electrical power, extension of electrical power use, electrical
power use right transfer/receipt, requests to expand distribution area within/outside the land housing
project, requests for power guarantee refunds, transfers and receipt of power use security deposits

and power use termination.

Requests for temporary or permanent use of water, extension of water use, water use right transfer/
receipt, requests for plumbing system design and appraisal, requests for expansion of water distribution
area within/outside the land housing project, requests for water use security deposit refunds, transfer
and receipt of water use security deposit, water use termination, requests for permanent water use

transfer.

Filing of complaints about telephones, telephone number right rental, filing of general complaints to the

Thailand Post Company to take any action and requests for house numbers.

Requests for license renewal/license amendment/changes in license type with any public agency or
organization such as permits for construction, permits for building demolition, all types of building
modifications, land fill, requests to install signs, link roads, cut foot paths, drain wastewater, verify and
issue certificates, building construction and the placement of security deposits in the aforementioned

matters.

Requests for permission to do business with the Land Department or public agencies related to land
and housing, amendments of land housing diagrams and land housing project methods, all types of
land surveys, e.g., sub-divisions/merging, boundary checks, etc., boundary indicators and boundary
certification, reductions or cancelations of security deposits for utilities and/or utility maintenance,
documents concerning the setting of village housing juristic persons, condominium juristic person
registrations, condominium registrations, signatures to participate in village housing juristic person
meetings or condominium juristic person meetings, signatures in documents for the sale, mortgage or
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termination of mortgage and records of late right transfer of the contract to purchase/sell residential

land/land with structures/condominium/ building structure.

2.6 The filing of complaints to interrogate officers, retract complaints, appoint attorneys, authorize the power
of attorney to file lawsuits, drafting letters to inquire about/cancel contracts, letter to explain to public

agencies, or individuals, or juristic persons.

2.7 Signing contracts to purchase/sell condominiums, condominium unit purchase reservation contracts,
contracts to purchase/sell land (in land housing projects), contracts to purchase/sell land with
structures (in housing projects), land rental contracts, building rental contracts, condominium unit rental
contracts, furniture rental contracts, contracts for the purchase/sale of kitchen furniture, equipment
and other related premiums and furniture installation, contracts for signing frame rentals, contracts
for advertisement services, contracts for construction employment, contracts for design employment,
letters of confirmation for service/merchandise receipts, purchase orders, documents for conducting
and presenting environmental impact assessment reports, the filing of local taxes/sign taxes/household
taxes/ security guards, maid/ messenger employment contracts, photocopier rental contracts, property
(clubhouse) rental contracts, memoranda of understanding (repair/remodeling utility systems) made

available for housing village juristic persons.

2.8 Purchase/sales/removal/renewal of financial notes for purchasing material in normal business; letters to
request lines of credit, forms for financial transaction requests, request to use services/change internet
banking service information, requests to issue letters of guarantee/extend letters of guarantee, requests

for confirmation of balance for the auditor’'s annual audit.

2.9 Signing to receive privileges such as land deeds and/or any documents from banks, financial institutions,

individual or juristic persons.
2.10 Signing letter to inquire and/or verify any information, to make any requests or coordinate with public

agencies, government enterprises, private companies, associations, individuals or juristic persons on

business matters related to the company’s normal business operations.

Scope of duties and authorities of the Board of Directors

1.

Manage the Company in accordance with laws, the objectives, Articles of Association and resolutions of
Shareholders’ Meetings

Formulate policies and determine the direction for operations, financial management and business risk
management; oversee management operations in line with the predetermined policies with efficiency and
effectiveness

Consistent responsibility to Shareholders; protect the interests of Shareholders; disclose information with
accuracy, completeness, to standard and with transparency

Authority to appoint any number of Directors as Executive Directors for performing one or more tasks, except
those prescribed by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholder’'s Meeting resolutions.

Transactions in which Directors or other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested interest,
or any other form of conflict of interest with the Company obligate the said Director to refrain from exercising
or casting votes concerning the matter in question

Board of Directors’ Meetings are required to be held at least every 3 months

Regular Shareholders’ Meetings are to be organised within 4 months of the end of the Company’s accounting
year.

Directors may not engage in any business or have shareholdings in other juristic persons of a similar nature
with the Company’s business, or that are competitors to the Company, except as informed to Shareholders
prior to appointment as a Director
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2) Management

3)

As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s Management Board comprised 7 individuals as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Managing Director

2. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Deputy Managing Director

3. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Assistant Managing Director

4. Mr. Korn Thanapipatsiri Assistant Managing Director

5. Mr. Narong Sangarsongkogk Senior Project Construction Director

6. Mr. Wanchai Aranyawulttikul Senior Project Construction Director

7. Mrs. Kanittha Tumviseth Account Manager

8. Mr. Seri Sintuas Finance Manager and Company Secretary

Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Managing Director

The Managing Director is responsible for performing any ordinary operating activities as assigned by the

Board of Directors or the Executive Committee specified under the rules and regulations of the company. The

ordinary operating activities of the company are defined as follows:

+ To approve the purchase of the construction material and any relevant services for the benefits of the

company. This shall not include the purchase of the land.

+ To approve the operating expenses, selling and administrative expenses and investments to be in
accordance with the budget approved by the Board of Director or the Executive Committee. This shall

not include any loans or guarantee.

Such Managing Director shall not perform any operations that may lead him or any person to have a conflict

of interest with the company or the subsidiaries.

Company Secretary

The appointment of the Company Secretary relies on the discretion of the Company’s board of directors

because the board of directors is responsible for the appointment of a Company Secretary to handle meetings

of the Company’s board of directors, shareholders’ meetings and various activities of the Company’s board of

directors in order to help the board of directors and the Company practice in compliance with related laws and

regulations. At Board of Directors Meeting 3/2556 on 13 August 2013 Mr. Seri Sintuas was appointed to the position

of Company Secretary to replace Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk. The appointment became effective as of 14 August

2016 onward until the present.

Company Secretary Scope of Authority and Duties

1.

Manages shareholders’ meetings and board of directors’ meetings in compliance with the law as well as the

Company’s rules and regulations as well as the code of best practice.

Reports resolutions and policy of the Company’s board of directors and shareholders to the executives

involved and monitors practice in compliance with resolutions and policies.

Offers preliminary advice to the Company’s board of directors on issues involving the law and the Company’s
rules and regulations as required by the board of directors and monitors practice for accurate and regular

compliance, including reports on changes in legal specifications relevant to the directors.

Records minutes to the shareholders’ meetings and meetings of the Company’s board of directors, including
follow-up on practice in compliance with resolutions passed by the meetings of shareholders and the

Company’s board of directors. o7
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5. Compiles and stores reports on stakeholders reported by the directors and executives in addition to other
important certificates or documents, e.g. company registration, letters scheduling meetings of the Company’s
board of directors, minutes to the meetings of the Company’s board of directors, annual reports and letters

scheduling shareholders’ meetings with the minutes to shareholders’ meetings.

6. Handles disclosure of information and informative reports under obligation to report to the agencies regulating

the Company in compliance with the official rules, regulations and specifications of those agencies.

7. Contacts and communicates with general shareholders to inform them of various rights or privileges granted

to shareholders and to also keep them informed about Company news.
8.  Handles the activities of the Company’s board of directors.

9. Performs other tasks as stipulated by the law or as assigned by the Company’s board of directors or as

notified by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

4) Remuneration for Directors and Management

1 Monetary remuneration

(a) The remuneration of the Company's Directors in 2014

# of attended Remuneration
) Total
Nam e of Directors Position Board of Audit Meeting Annual Amount
) ) Allowance | Remuneration -
Director | Committee " . (BMillion)
(BMillion) (BMillion)
1. Mr.Taveesak Watcharak- Chairman 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
kawong
2. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Director & Executive 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
Chairman
3. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Director, Independent 5/5 5/5 0.05 0.50 0.55
Director & Chairman of the
Audit Committee
4. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Director, Independent 5/5 5/5 0.05 0.40 0.45
Director & Member of the
Audit Committee
5. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Director, Independent 5/5 5/5 0.05 0.40 0.45
Director & Member of the
Audit Committee
6. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk | Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
7. Mr. Churat Chakarakul | Director & Executive Director 5/5 - 0.05 - 0.05
594 0.35 1.30 1.65

Details of the director’s remuneration for the year 2014 (Resolutions of the 2014 Annual General Shareholder’s
Meeting held on April 25, 2014) as follows :
1. Directors’ meeting allowance Baht 10,000 / Meeting
(No annual remuneration for directors)
2. Annual remuneration for Chairman of audit committee =~ Baht 500,000 / year

3. Annual remuneration for Audit committee Baht 400,000 / person / year

(b) Remuneration for Executive Directors and management as of the end of 2014 was provided in the form

of salary, transportation allowance and bonuses, totaling 28.91 million Baht.
2.  Other remuneration

- none
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5) Personnel
The Company accords a high importance to its personnel and offers various benefits for employees, such as :
1. Housing loans, provided by the Government Housing Bank
2. Provident funds
3. Social security

4. Financial assistance for various events such as entering the monkhood, marriage, maternity leave,

injury, housing, natural disasters, or death of an employee or their immediate relatives and spouse.

Moreover, the Company values the importance of safety in the workplace. Consequently, the company
has organized annually fire drills and activities related to safety. Also, the company has promoted 5S activity in

organization, and arranged to check the elevator in company’s building monthly.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had a total of 385 employees (not including Directors and management),

categorized according to the major operations as follows.

Full-time

Part-time Total

Project Sites 99 - 99
Construction 120 47 138
Head Office 119 - 119
Total 338 47 385

In 2014, employees received remuneration in the form of salaries and bonuses totaling 131.82 million Baht.

Human Resources Development Policy

In today’s economic environment and intense competition, Lalin Property PCL. is determined to create quality
products under the slogan “Home Planted on the Roots of Goodwill.” Therefore, the company gives importance to
management and manufacturing resource preparations, which includes preparing people with sustainable competitive

potential.

Human resources development is considered one of the policies to which the company gives top priority. The
company has a systematic and continuous human resources development policy focused on potential development
for people to gain knowledge and skills consistent with their work responsibilities. A good attitude toward work and the
organization is fostered in conjunction with promoting values that form the foundation for the corporate culture. The
company is determined to develop human resources in all aspects. When employees start work, they are required to
pass a new employee orientation course with emphasis on service-minded people and direct understanding of work

roles for regular employees.

The company makes annual training plans by establishing courses that cover employee development on all
levels, e.g., knowledge management, strategic planning, etc. for management and operation employees, e.g., value
engineering, service excellence, etc., including basic courses to prepare employees for future effective work in various
positions. Moreover, the company has specifically arranged individual development programs for star employees in

order to further their knowledge and skills and allow them to perform work as company managers in the future.
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Furthermore, the company organizes activities promoting attachments among employees and the organization
(Engagement) by fostering a good work atmosphere with safety and happiness. Closeness is established between
managers and employees through various activities, which are considered a means of building employee spirit and
morale, allow them to recognize their importance and value, and to foster work ethics and moral conscientiousness

for responsibility to work with care and attention to society.

Finally, the company gives importance to work-life balance. The company holds the view that good work-life

quality is a factor that will sustainably attract and retain skilled and knowledgeable employees in the organization.

Lalin Property PCL. believes that the company’s human resources development policy is an important foundation

that requires constant structured implementation in order to achieve sustainable growth for the organization.
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1. Corporate Governance Policy

Lalin Property public company limited recognizes the essence of the good corporate governance as an important

factor to lead the company to have the efficient system and a foundation for the sustainable growth of the company.
To be in accordance with the 2006 principles of Good Corporate Governance for listed companies set by the SET, the
Company has implemented the good corporate governance to be a practice guideline. The details of the policy are as
follows:

1. Rights of Shareholders

The company always recognizes and respects the rights of the shareholders. These rights include the rights
to purchase/ sell or transfer the shares, profit sharing, sufficiently access to company’s information, attend the
meeting to vote at the shareholder's meeting.

The annual general meeting of shareholders shall be held annually within 4 months after the end of accounting
period. The notice of this meeting and the meeting agendas including the meeting document shall be sent to the
shareholders at least 14 days before the shareholders’ meeting and shall be advertised on the daily newspaper at
least 3 consecutive days. Moreover, the company shall have the notice of the meeting and the meeting document
posted on the website of the company (www.lalinproperty.com) not less than 30 days before the meeting. In this
case all shareholders shall have enough time to study and look through the entire meeting document and be well
preparing for the meeting.

The notice of meeting shall include information such as date, time and venue of the meeting, including location
map and all relevant supporting documents that shall be used for making decision at the meeting. Moreover, in
the notice of meeting, the company should also inform all shareholders the meeting rules, including the Articles
of Association on the Shareholder Meeting, meeting regulations and practice, procedures and documents to be
presented by shareholders before attending the meeting for both cases whereby the shareholders are attending

the meeting in person and by proxy. The proxy forms of type A, B and C are attached at the end of this notice
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letter as for the convenience of the shareholder to appoint their proxy. Moreover, the postage is provided by
the company on the meeting date for the convenience of the proxy. For the shareholders who cannot attend the
meeting, such shareholders can appoint any independent director to vote on their behalf.

Furthermore, for the convenience of the shareholder meeting, the company has set the appropriate date,
time and venue of the meeting by not having the meeting on the bank holiday. The company also set the meeting
to be held during 8.00 a.m.- 4.00 p.m. and the venue to be located at the area whereby it is easy to access for all
shareholders. For the past meetings, the company has always chosen the venue which is nearby the BTS, MRT
station as for the convenience of the shareholders to commute. At the annual general meeting of shareholders,
the company shall open for registration at least 2 hours before the commencement of the meeting in order to
provide sufficient time for all shareholders to register and to hold welcome reception for shareholders attending
the meeting.

The company allows shareholders who join the meeting after the meeting has already commenced to vote
on agenda items that are in the process of being considered and do not yet have a resolution.

In the agenda of directors’ election, the company provides opportunities for shareholders to vote on individual
directors. The invitation letter will have accompanying documents with details of the directors nominated for election
including their education and working experience backgrounds, shareholding in the company, and the record of
their meeting attendance in the passing year. Shareholders; therefore, have sufficient information to support their
consideration in voting.

At each shareholder meeting, the company shall give all shareholders equal opportunity to present their
opinions and suggestion, including raise questions at the end of each agenda. Moreover, the company shall
provide sufficient time for further discussion whereby the chairman of the meeting, directors and the management
shall equally pay attention to every question and give the clear answers. A clear and complete minute shall be
recorded with total votes of each agenda. Company has invited auditors from S.K. Accountant services co.,ltd to
observe the meeting and check transparency of voting summary every time. The company issued and submitted
the minutes of the meeting to Stock Exchange of Thailand and Ministry of Commerce within 14 days as specified
by law, and posted on company’s website for interested shareholders to read and examine the information.

At the 2014 annual general meeting of shareholders, All 7 directors are attending the meeting. Chairman,
Chairman of the Audit Committee, Managing Director, C.F.O. and high level management from each important
department whereby these people are required to attend the meeting in order to answer the inquiries of the
shareholders.

1.2 Equal Treatment to Shareholders

The company has treated all shareholders equally and fairly no matter the shareholder is the executive
director or non-executive director or has the alien nationality. The Company prepares the shareholders’ meeting
documents in both Thai and English.

The company offers the opportunity for shareholders who cannot attend the meeting in person by letting them
appoint other persons to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf. When sending out the notice of meeting,
the company shall have the proxy form attached with the letter every time. Such shareholders can determine their
voting direction and appoint at least 1 person to be their proxy. Moreover, the company has provided the postage
at the registration area in front of the meeting room for the convenience of the proxy in case they have not affix the
postage.

For this annual general meeting of shareholders, after the details of each agenda have been explained
then the shareholders will be given equal opportunity to raise the questions and present their opinions to the
meeting. The voting ballots shall be distributed to shareholders attending the meeting for voting especially for the
disapproved votes or abstained votes. Moreover, the company has separated each agenda from one another so
that the shareholders can vote each agenda independently, for example, agenda on the election of directors. For
this agenda, the shareholders can vote for directors individually and then the voting ballots shall be collected from
all shareholders.
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The company also sets the policy that directors and the management shall not use the material internal

information of the company that has not been disclosed to the public for their own or other benefits, including

buying/ selling securities of the company. The company has a management procedure for the case whereby the

management uses the internal information of the company for their own or other benefits. The details of procedures

are as follows:

Inform the directors and the management their obligation to report on their holding securities including
those securities held by their partners and minors and report on the changes in securities investment
specified under Section 39 and the Determination of Punishment under Section 275 of the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

Circulate the memo to directors and the management informing that directors and the management, who
have received the material internal information that may effect on the prices of the securities, shall avoid
or temporarily stop the purchase/ sale of the company’s securities for 1 month. Moreover, they shall not
disclose material information to other persons before the financial statement or such internal information
has been disclosed to the public. In order to monitor and examine the abovementioned operation, the
company has set the policy that the management shall report the holding securities and changes in

securities as specified under Section 59 to the Board of Directors.

1.8 Roles of Stakeholders

The company is aware of the rights of each group of stakeholders, either internal stakeholders or external

stakeholders e.g. customers, shareholders, competitors, related government agencies and employees, including

social and environmental responsibilities. The company also encourages the cooperation between the company

and the stakeholders in order to promote the sustainable growth of the company in a long term. The details are

shown as follows

Customers :

The company has emphasized on promoting the satisfaction of the customers by offering customers with
good quality products and great service to be accordance with our determination “to build the house
with good willingness”.

The company has emphasized on developing the quality of the products. As such, the product research
and development unit has been established in order to study the requirements of the customers and
continuously develop quality of products.

The company has set the quality control for the houses built by the contractor. The inspection shall
be conducted by the supervisor, head of supervisor, engineers and project manager, respectively.
Moreover, to ensure the quality of the house, the company has set the centralized quality control unit to
inspect the quality of the houses.

To enhance the efficiency of the after sale service, the company has set the Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) unit to resolve any problems of the customers and organize the events of each
project of the company.

The company has communicated with the customers via the website of the company and the quarterly
newsletter to update the news and other activities to customers.

Shareholders :

The company determines to be a good representative of the shareholders by considering a good return
and maximizing long term shareholder’s wealth.

The company has communicated with the shareholders via the website of the company to update the
news of the company e.g. details and supporting document of the shareholder meeting, etc.

The company is welcomed any inquiries or questions raised by the shareholders and investors via the

telephone or at the meeting.

79

Annual Report 2014
Lalin Property Public Company Limited



ALY :
u

=

WiEninsUimnunsaunsnizeansudeduing ldinaneedesresguaanienisddaanisnananily
neFel

a o a v 3| A = ] a o A | ¥ [ | Y ad ¥
Enisznavgsnasaanuiiiuiioandn lissinpandy vieasfanuduaesguisiaeiidean tnaly
pagnTaafiiunn Ui lifdeinanlas luFedminasiuguamianisd

WUNNY

' o '

vsEmlipnndrdnyiuntinaulsededuninainsiiian Inefinisdfifsentdnauetrainies waziiu
0953 InenaunasaLULNuLATadaAnImNIzaN uaziusssu

s lfdnadannissine Wiiuninau endivu mi@ﬁmaﬁuijﬁuL‘ﬁ@%@ﬁ@g’mﬁﬂﬁmmmimmimLm‘ﬂ:ﬁ
mﬁm’tﬁﬁﬂmnuzﬁﬁmugﬂﬁw nnedpvinimslsziugananldiuninaunnau aaenauRutaemae by
naElsing anfiviu gUanum nnasNsa AnaAyRs iuLae ﬁ@q’mﬁﬂﬂimuﬁﬂﬁiﬁ waznIAdeN 19an
A9 AANTA WIaNTNNWALTI6

Uinlgsaliinsiineusuminauetnsieiias Inendume aziansanisannasniduuazanswaunisin
ausulszTRuininadlunnessu Wedinyuannag acuananan Ifuininnuaes3sm uazuanan
NNINBUNYAAININNIAUANLEUNTHNe LN sz AN TR LTI Sarinuun liduHUN IV mMUIYARINS
‘ﬁﬁﬁnﬁmw@q (star) 14Tagi@n1y (Individual Development Programs) L'Wlfal,ﬁwumw;i’ ANATNNTD U
a‘xﬁuﬁlqﬁu wazansodfiRuluswmiediinseszEm Ialuewaasely

a0 gy o o o > o o Yo § v > = o g vl
wsEnlianudrAryiuaninuandan uazpandasasieluivinem Iaglddnlainisdanviiln dalvdsuy
flagriude Aangsu 5 & waziinisnsadiaaniitasansluanmailutlszamninen

FANIRTY :

i linnudnAtyslanadamedeyatintarsunaenoatu inaliainnsnaesislidaisnsnmul daeing
gnAuazsaniaiusiemsnisnd tnatdumladnliilasanissine ieaiispanudniusivdennat 19
wiu NN TNTASINIIURILEEN NesanAuRLEuRAnsTNdeAen19dIAN s

TUTY UWASRIAN

Uimdnilivdeuanden unnuas THTU AvdnganAlufanssuda mAenedensetnegsinane ani
Vi miu?émmﬁutﬁ@ﬁhﬂm?i'aQ’ﬂimuﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘lumamitﬁﬁmj nsldunsAnEwiANInEEwInANEN
@ﬂ'wmj”ummnﬂﬂ gy Fhetheasnsianssudildgniinlug 2556 paaineagluiade “AvNFLRn
TausAadIAN”

1 lAan i damnsiinetu uazfidoulfiduannsosinsie fasFau wrauduuizua lunsiinlailafuaaa

usssu989L5Em duniagaunsmaasungluniunetfuan ineamunsnmaseuteys taaoundaiia

A39 ANAUNNIANNNIZUIUNNINLEENA MU LAZINETURBALYNIINNNTATIAAAL WAZATLZNITNNNTLTENINNG
UszisundAny

¥
a o

] a o a 3 [
WULURTIAFAUME LU UTHN AAR W‘J’BWLW’E‘EM INA (NWI1TU)

WA 222/2 14 2 BIATRRANTONNDTH

DULATUATUNS LI9IUNIN WALNINET)

ﬂ‘a:\‘iLV]'W‘ﬂ 10240
NeANA 0-2732-1041-5 # 310 15417 0-2377-9656

1.4 nmsidniwevoyana:aowlussla

Ui laliaudrAtysienataneansaumand Aoy neaiulssm vedeyan1anisdu wazdeyanillddeya

a ' v o ' Y A 19 ' oAl o [ val o
N9NN9REU aenegnsies s warldddla undauuazyraaiineadasatrainneniu Ingldueumunaldfigiu
AATALNUNNAUEAIWUANAUE (Investor Relations) iiatflugaunulunis@eansiudasunasynnaaiinaode iy

80

snevuUs:91U 2557

a
o

USUN ada wSowiwesH 91An (UKBU)



e Creditors:

1. The company complies with the terms of loans and obligations to its creditors including business creditors,
financial institutes, and company’s bondholders.

2. The company always carefully considers and manages its risks in doing business. Thus, company is only
a few companies in property development sector that has never been NPLs with any financial institutes
during Asian financial crisis in 1997

e Trading partners :

1. The company continuously promotes the cooperation and maintains good relationship with their trading
partners e.g cooperating with the partners in producing the roof in the specific color of the company and
cooperating with the commercial banks to offer a special interest rate to the customers of the company.

2. The company has treated the partners fairly and appropriately under the condition and trade agreement.
The company has always made the payment to the partners on time every week.

e Competitors :

1. The company has operated under the competitive rules. As such, the company shall not destroy the
reputation of the competitors with some negative accusation.

2. The company operates its business with professional. There is no violation of competitor confidentiality
or deception to get the confidential information of the competitors. As for now the company has no
disputes with their competitors.

e Employees:

1. The company believes that employees are valuable assets and treats all employees equally and fairly
by offering the fair and appropriate remunerations and fringe benefits.

2. The company offers several fringe benefits to employees, for example, employee home loans with the
Government Housing Bank, Retirement Mutual Funds, health insurance card to all employees, including
some contribution money in the events of ordination, marriage, maternity, illness, disaster to your home
and funeral of the parents, child, partner or employee.

3. The company has continuously provided employees with training. The company shall study the
requirement and develop the annual training plan to employees in all level to enhance their knowledge
and capabilities. Apart from the annual training plan designed to employees in all levels, the company
has specially designed the individual development program for the high potential employees (star) to
enhance their knowledge and capabilities to a higher level and to become the management in the future.

4. The company has emphasized on environment and safety issues in the workplace by organizing regular
fire drills, activities related to safety, 5S, and arranging for monthly elevator maintenance.

e Mass Medium:

1. The company has emphasized on disclosure company’s information to mass medium; therefore, public
can receive the correct and timely information. The company also organizes various projects in order
to keep good relationship with mass medium such as arranging a company’s site visit and cooperating
in several social activities.

e Community and Social :

1. The company is responsible for the environment, social and community. Therefore, the company has
regularly involved in several social activities, such as, offering some contributions to disaster victims,
giving out the scholarships to students every year, etc. Some of activities in 2013 are revealed under
“Corporate social responsibility” section.

In case shareholders and stakeholders didn’t received fair treatment from the company, the company has

established a channel for them to contact, file complaints or provide information through the internal audit department
at the address below, in order to verify information, investigate the truth and proceed according to the Company’s

procedures and report to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors if any crucial issues found.
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Internal Audit Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited

222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor

Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi

Bangkok 10240

Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 310 Fax: 0-2377-9656

1.4 Disclosure and Transparency

The company has emphasized on equally disclosing the correct and transparent material information of the
company, including the financial statement and non-financial information to investors and related persons in a timely
manner. The company has set up one unit to be responsible for the investor relations. Its responsibility includes
communicating with the investors and related persons through several communication channels e.g. news release
via the Stock Exchange of Thailand, performance press release to the analyst, press release, telephone, e-mail
and website of the company.

The Investor Relations department will be responsible for disclosing important information and answering
queries to investors. Interested investors can view company’s financial statement as well as importance operating
performance from the Company’s website at www.lalinproperty.com or contact Investor Relations department for
more information at:

Investor Relations Department - Lalin Property Public Company Limited

222/2 Lalin Property Tower, 2nd floor

Srinakarin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi

Bangkok 10240

Tel: 0-2732-1041-5 # 202 Fax: 0-2377-9656
In the annual report, the company shall report the responsibilities of the Board towards the financial report

along with the auditor’s report, including the roles and responsibilities of the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Executive Committee. This includes the number of the meeting and the number of attendance by each director
in the past year. Moreover, the company should disclose the remunerations (including those in money term and
other benefits) of the directors, Audit Committee and the management of the company in the annual report and
the report 56-1.

1.5 Responsibility of the Board of Directors

1.5.1 Structure of the Board

The Board of Directors comprises of persons with good knowledge, capabilities and experience in
various areas. The Board is responsible for setting the vision, mission; and approval of the business direction,
policy, strategy and goal of the company in order for the management to use as a guideline in developing the
annual business plan, supporting plan and budget. The key performance indicators (KPIs) system is used
to monitor the performance. In 2014, Board of Directors had considered, reviewed and approved vision,
mission, and strategies for the year 2014. So that Management and staffs had the same goal.

In order to have a clear roles and responsibility, the Board has set the clear roles and responsibilities
of the Board, Audit Committee, Executive Committee and the managing director.

The Board of Directors comprises of 7 persons. Of that amount, 3 of them are the directors who are the
management and another 4 are not the management. Of those 4 directors who are not the management, 3 of
them are the independent directors and in the Audit Committee whereby this figure is more than one-third of
total directors, this gives them the authority in examining the operations of the company and balancing the
power of other directors. Moreover, the Chairman of the Board shall not be the same person as the managing
director as there should be a segregation of duties whereby the governance policy setting and the day-to-
day operation shall be separated from each other.

Under the Item 15 of the company regulation, it is stated that one-third of total directors, whereby
currently there are 7 directors, shall be released from the post at the annual general meeting of shareholders.
Each director has a term of 3-4 years. After the term is reached, the Board shall hold a meeting to consider
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the person with qualification to be the director in order to propose to the shareholder meeting. The Board
can reelect the director who is released from the post back to be the director.

The company has prepared documents and described the overall image of the company’s business,
along with other information related to the company’s business for newly appointed directors to ensure that
appointed directors understand the company’s business.

1.5.2 Sub Committee

The company has established the Audit Committee whereby the term of directors is 2 years. Its roles
and responsibilities have been set clear and stated under the roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee
under the Section of Management.

The Board has not established the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. The
remunerations set by the Board have been well considered whereby the Board has compared remunerations
to those set by the same industry. Such remunerations shall be approved by the shareholder meeting and
the remunerations of the management shall be in accordance with the principal and policy set by the Board.
1.5.3 Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for managing the company to be in accordance with the law, objectives,
regulations and the resolution passed from the shareholder meeting. The Board shall consider and give an
approval, including develop the vision, mission, strategy and direction of operations, treasury, risk management.
Moreover, the Board is responsible for overseeing the management to efficiently and effectively operate
under the policy set. Furthermore, their responsibilities include protecting the interests of the shareholders
and disclosing the correct and complete information with standard and transparency.

The Board can assign and appoint the director to be the managing director to perform any business
except for those required by the law stating to have the resolution passed from the shareholder meeting.
For any issues whereby the director or the person may have a conflict of interest, such directors shall waive
their right to vote on those issues.

1.5.4 The Board of Directors Meeting

The company’s board of directors regularly organizes meetings. The chairman of the board promotes
thorough consideration and sufficient time allocation for each meeting. In preparing meeting agendas, the
company offers opportunities for directors to propose meeting agendas with the Chairman of the Board and
Managing Director as the people in charge of granting approval for meeting order and agendas. Hence, the
corporate secretary will coordinate with all directors and schedule meetings in advance throughout the entire
year, sending meeting invitations, agendas and minutes to the meetings to the company’s board of directors
at least seven business days before every meeting so that directors have time to study the information before
each meeting. Furthermore, directors are charged with attending the company’s board of directors’ meeting
every time unless necessity dictates otherwise. The minimum meeting quorum when the board of directors
passes a resolution requires that at least two-thirds of all directors be present.

Furthermore, the company offers opportunities for independent directors to organize their own meetings
and/or participate in a meeting with the internal auditor and/or with the company’s auditor without the presence
of the management to discuss any problems of interest each year, and fully at will.

Each meeting is recorded in writing, and the board of directors is required to certify each of the
aforementioned minutes to the meeting every time in the subsequent meetings. In 2014, the company’s board
of directors organized a total of five meetings, four of which are meetings according to normal agendas, while
another meeting was organized near the end of the year in order to jointly evaluate the year’'s performance
along with making considerations, reviews and setting visions or missions of the company in a period of 3-5
years, including making approvals for the company’s business direction, policies, strategies and goals for
the following year. Hence, the details of attendance for each director are disclosed in the heading Directors

and Executives’ Remunerations
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1.5.5 Self-assessment of the Board

The company has the policy stating that the Board shall re-assess their performance annually so
that the Board can jointly consider the performance and problems in order to use those to improve their
performance.
1.5.6 Remunerations

The remunerations of the Board are cautiously considered and set by the Board Meeting whereby
these remunerations are compared to those set by the same industry. The proposed remunerations shall
be approved at the shareholder meeting. As for the remunerations of 2014, the directors had the meeting
allowances of THB 10,000 per meeting (No annual remuneration). The chairman of audit committee had the
annual remunerations of THB 500,000, and the member of audit committee had the annual remunerations
of THB 400,000 per person. For the remunerations of the management, the management shall received the
salary and bonus based on the performance of the company and their individual performance. Details of the
remunerations of the Management shall be disclosed and presented under the Remunerations of Directors
and Management.
1.5.7 Development of Directors and the Management

To assure shareholders and investors that directors are knowledgeable in carrying out their duties
as a director in accordance to good corporate governance principles, the company has encouraged the
directors to continuously train with the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD). As for the management, the company
has the policy to develop the management of the company by encouraging them to pursue their further study
in MBA and Mini-MBA, etc.

2. Board Committee

The Company’s board committee comprises 2 committees, the Audit Committee and the Executive Committee,
with details of names and scope of responsibilities as well as authorities presented below.

2.1) The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises 3 members as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Suvarn Thansathit Independent Director & Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Mr. Niputh Jitprasonk Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee
3. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Independent Director & Member of the Audit Committee

All of the audit committee above has fully qualifications determined by the Securities and stock Exchange
Act, and has adequate expertise and experience to review creditability of the financial reports. In 2014 the audit
committee convened a total of 5 meetings. Ms.Nitthakarn Changkate, Internal audit Manager, serves as audit

committee secretary

Definition of an Independent Director

An independent director means a director who does not own a business or have any work related to
the company that will affect the director’s independent decisions. Hence, an independent director is required
to meeting the following qualifications:

1. A share holding of no more than one percent of the total number of issued shares entitled to vote of the
company; not a major shareholder or a person with directing authority in the company. Furthermore, the
shares of persons related to each respective independent director are also to be included.

2. s notorwas not a director who participated in work management, employee, worker, salaried consultant,
person of the company with directing authority, major shareholder, or of a person of the company with

directing authority, unless removed from the aforementioned status for at least two years.
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Not a person related by blood or legal registration as a father, mother, spouse, sibling, offspring, including
spouse of offspring, of other directors, executives, major shareholders, person with directing authority
or person nominated as a director, executive, or person with directing authority in the company.

Does not or never has had business relations with the company, the company’s major shareholders or
person with directing authority of the requester in a manner that could obstruct the director’s independent
judgment, along with not being or had not been a significant shareholder, or a person with directing
authority of any person who has business relations with the company, the company’s major shareholder
or person with directing authority unless removed from the aforementioned status by at least two years.
Is not and never has been a company auditor, major shareholder or person with directing authority, and
is not a significant shareholder, person with directing authority, or partner with the audit office where
the company’s auditor or person with directing authority in the company, unless removed from the
aforementioned status for at least two years.

Is not or never has been a service provider in any profession, which includes legal consultation services
or financial consultation, that received a services from the company amounting to more than two million
baht per year from the company, the company’s major shareholders, or persons with directing authority,
and cannot be a significant shareholder, person with directing authority or partnership of the service
provider of the aforementioned professions unless removed from the aforementioned position for at
least two years.

Not a director appointed as a proxy for a company director, major shareholder or shareholder who is
involved with a major shareholder of the company.

Not engaged in the same business or in significant competition with the company’s business, or not a
significant partner in a partnership or a director participating in work management, employee, worker,
regularly salaried consultant, or a person who holds more than one percent of all shares with voting
privileges of another company operating in the same business and in significant competition with the
company’s business.

No other attributes preventing the director from rendering independent decisions about the company’s

performance.

Components and Appointment of the Audit Committee

The company’s board of directors and/or meeting of shareholders will appoint at least three people to form

the Audit Committee. Appointees are to be fully qualified in compliance with notifications by the Securities and

Exchange Commission and are to hold a 2-year term of office for each appointment.

Scope of duties and authorities of the Audit Committee

1.

The audit committee of the company has the scope of duties and responsibilities to the Board of Directors
on the following matters:

To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate.

To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable
and efficient, to determine an internal audit unit's independence, as well as to approve the appointment,
transfer and dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit.
To review the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations,
and the laws relating to the Company’s business.

To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose
such person’s remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least

once a year.
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To consider the related transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure
that they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are presented accurately
and comprehensively.
To report the audit committee’s operation to the board of directors at least once a quarter.
To prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report, an audit committee’s report which must be
signed by the audit committee’s chairman and consist of at least the following information:
(@) An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report,
(b)  An opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system,
(c)  Anopinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations,
or the laws relating to the Company’s business,
(d)  An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,
(e)  An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,
(f)  The number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each
committee member,
(g) An opinion or overview comment received by the audit committee from its performance of duties
in accordance with the charter, and
(h)  Other transactions which, according to the audit committee’s opinion, should be known to the
shareholders and general investors, subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned

by the Company’s board of directors; and

9. To perform any other act as assigned by the Company’s board of directors, with the approval of the

audit committee.

2.2) The Executive Committee

In 2014 the Executive Committee convened a total of 114 meetings and as of December 31, 2014 had 3

Directors, as follows.

Name of Director Position

1. Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul Executive Chairman
2. Mr. Nat Sangarsongkogk Executive Director
3. Mr. Churat Chakarakul Executive Director

Components and Appointment of the Management

The company’s board of directors will appoint management by selecting a number of people from the

company'’s directors.

Scope of authorities and responsibilities of the Executive Committee

1.

The Executive Committee is invested with the authority to carry out operations in accordance with the
policies of the Board of Directors, within the framework of the law and the Company Articles of Association.
Exceptions are made for conditions required by law as requiring the mandate of Shareholders’ Meeting
resolutions.

The authority to approve loans or other borrowings from financial institutions and/or the issue of financial
debt instruments and/or any other forms of financial promissory notes to general investors, specific
investors and institutional investors. This includes authorization to arrange settlements or payments for
the normal business operations of the Company, such as investment outlays, or for the purchase of land
or land with constructions and other activities. The limit for each transaction is determined at a maximum
of 700 million Baht, or an equivalent amount, or as assigned by the Board of Directors

Authority to appoint and remove Company officers from designations not above the level of Managing
Director

Authority to prepare, propose and determine policies, business direction and strategies for the Company

to the Board of Directors
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3)

5. Perform duties related to the general administration of the Company, including the determination of the
organizational structure and management, covering all details pertaining to the selection, training, hiring
and removal of Company employees.

6. Formulate business plans; facilitate administrative activities; approve the annual budget for business
operations and the annual expenditure budgets; carry out operations in accordance with the business
plans and business strategies to complement the policies and business direction presented to the
Board of Directors

7. Perform other duties as assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors.

The delegation of authority to the Executive Committee requires that transactions in which Executive Directors
or other individuals may have a potential conflict of interest or vested interest, or any other form of conflict of interest
with the Company or its subsidiaries, obligate the said Executive Director to refrain from exercising or casting votes
concerning the matter in question. The authorization of transactions with a possible conflict of transaction must be
carried out in compliance with the Announcement of the Stock Exchange of Thailand concerning the guidelines,

method and disclosure of listed company related transactions.

Selection of Directors and Executives
Appointment and removal of Company Directors
1. In the appointment and removal of Company directors, Company directors are elected by the shareholders’
meeting whereby the appointment of directors must be approved by shareholders’ meeting with no less than
half of the total number of votes cast by shareholders in attendance and entitled to vote at the meeting. The
shareholders are entitled to exercise their rights to vote on an individual basis.
2. The Shareholders’ Meeting nominates Directors according to the guidelines and method as follows:
(1)  Each Shareholder has voting rights of one vote per share
(2) Each Shareholder will have a total number of votes determined as per Item (1) to nominate one or several
persons as Directors. However, the shares may not be divided in favour of a particular individual
(3) I ndividuals receiving the highest votes in descending order will be appointed as Directors according to
the number of Directors required, or to be voted in. In the event that there is a tie, but the appointment
of both candidates would exceed the number of Directors required or to be voted in, the Chairman of
the Meeting will cast the deciding vote.
3. Ateach Annual Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting, a total of 1 in 3 of the number of Directors is required to
vacate their posts. If the number of Directors is not divisible by three, the figure closestto 1 in 3 is to be used.
In the first and second years following the registration of the Company, the Directors to vacate their posts will
be decided by a lottery system. In successive years, the longest serving Directors will be obliged to vacate
their posts first.

4. In addition to completion of tenure, a Director may be considered to complete their terms due to

(1) Death

(2) Resignation

(3) Lack of qualifications or possession of prohibited qualities as specified by the Public Companies Act
(4) The Shareholders’ Meeting passes a resolution seeking the removal of a Director. A vote of not less

than 3 in 4 of the number of shares present and eligible for voting at the Meeting, representing at least
half of the votes in attendance and eligible to vote at the Meeting, is required
5. Any Director intending to resign must submit their formal resignation to the Company. The resignation becomes

effective upon the date the resignation document reaches the Company.
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4)

Nomination of Executive Directors

Executive Directors and management are nominated by the Meetings of the Board of Directors and are not
reviewed by the Nominations Committee, since the Company currently does not have such a committee. Nonetheless,
the Board of Directors considers candidates based on their qualifications, knowledge, capabilities and relevant
working experience. This includes qualifications as specified by Measure 68 of the Public Limited Companies Act
of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992) and the relevant Announcements of the Securities and Exchange Commission. This is in

the interests of ensuring the Company’s efficient operations.

Insider information controls

The Company has a policy forbidding Directors and management from using significant insider information about

the Company that has not yet been disclosed for the benefit of others, including the trading of Company securities. The

measures regarding executives’ use of insider information for personal gain is outlined as follows.

5)

(1)  Management in the various departments is clearly informed of their obligation to report their equity stake in the
Company; this also applies to their spouses and children who are minors. Changes in equity ownership are
likewise required to be reported, in accordance with Measure 59 and penalty Measure 275 of the Securities
and Stock Exchange Act of B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)

(2) Documentation is circulated to ensure that management are informed that Executives with access to significant
insider information which has the potential to impact changes in the price of the Company’s securities are
advised to refrain from trading in the Company’s shares for a period of 1 month. Such information is not
permitted to be disclosed to other parties prior to the disclosure to the general public of the financial statements
or the information in question. In order to control and monitor compliance in this regard, the Company has
a policy requiring management to report their shareholdings and any subsequent changes in securities to

the Board of Directors, in accordance with Measure 59.

Audit fees

The 2014 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders passed a resolution to nominate Ms. Wanraya Buddhisatean
with auditor license no. 4387 or Ms. Chantra Wongsriudomporn with auditor license no. 4996 from S.K. Accountant
Service Co., Ltd. to be the 2014 company’s auditor. All the auditors listed above have no relationship or any interest
with the company / subsidiaries / executives / major shareholders or related to such person in anyway. The audit
fees were determined at 750,000 Baht, Increasing 50,000 Baht from last year fee.

For non-audit item, in the last accounting period the company used the English translation service from this
auditing office which costs 40,000 baht.
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Social and Environmental Responsibilities

Social and Environmental Responsibilities

The phrase of “Houses Built on Good Intentions” is the main philosophy of all executives and employees of Lalin
Property Public Company Limited who are committed to build a house with full intention, pay attention to the life quality
and create good environment to customers, support motivation of all employees in the organization and nearby com-

munities, and also return benefits to the society.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is one of the principles that Lalin Property Public Company Limited consistently
focuses on throughout its operation. The Company is aware of the sustainable growth of the organization which requires
visions, capabilities, together with morality and ethics in the operation under the good corporate governance principle

and corporate social responsibility.

Respect of Human Rights and Fair Treatment of Employees

The Company is committed to comply with the labor law and other laws related to employment by focusing on
care and attention to employees. In addition, the Company provides welfares to employees, such as provident fund,
educational scholarship for employees, group health insurance, annual holidays according to rules of the labor law, fair
salary payment, and annual bonus payment, in order to return a favor to employees’ intentions in operations. KPI (Key
Performance Indicator) is applies as the indicator representing the efficiency and effectiveness of performances of the

organization or sections in the organization.

However, the Company establishes the Welfare Committee to give advices and suggestions regarding to welfares,
inspect and audit welfares provided to employees, and provide comments and additional or necessary guidelines
relating to welfares. In addition, the Company also provides the annual employee survey relating to satisfaction on the
working environment, nature of work, executives, communication, and organizational commitment of the employees.

Such survey will be applied as the guideline for further development t and improvement.

Furthermore, Lalin Property also focuses on providing trainings continuously in order to enhance skills, knowl-
edge, and capabilities in the operation of employees. Annually, the Company will offer opportunities to supervisors
and employees to express their opinions relating to the demand of trainings for self-development and development of

occupational knowledge and abilities.

Regarding to the activities for strengthening good relationship in the organization, the Company organizes the
New Year Party at the end of every year, Annual Sport's Day, and “Happy Hour” activity after office hours once a month,
in order to enhance happiness of employees in working, relax and reduce stress. These activities will lead to Happy
Organization and also create good relationship between employees, as well as employees and executives, including

support the organizational commitment of employees.

Fair Business Operation

The Company intends to create good confidence for customers, which will cause positive results in long term, and
ignores other benefits possibly affecting the business operation of the Company. The Company will avoid any operation
which may cause conflict of interests. If the conflict of interests is found, the Company will settle it fairly. In addition, the
Company provides the management system which prevents the bribes and corruption. If any corruption is detected,

the Company will rapidly solve that problem.
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Customer Responsibility

The Company emphasizes on doing business by constructing qualified and standardized houses. Moreover, the

Company is aware of services which create the best impression to customers with the following practices.

1. Providing complete and fair information to customers and considering benefits of customers, such as, no

exaggerated advertising, providing clear information with simple and easy-to-understand language

2. Developing products and services of the business which respond the social and environmental demand to
customers and have the standard in order to create customers” satisfaction. The Company establishes the
Quality Control section (QC) for inspecting and controlling the production process or services so that all
products are in accordance with the requirements of the organization, including the corrective action system

which helps detect non-conforming products.
3. Anti-corruption and performing fair business operation

4.  Listening to a problems and rapidly and willingly resolve problems without bias and mainly considering

benefits of customers

Organizing Activities under Project

The Company greatly pays attention to create good relationship with members under the Lalin Project by building
participation and interaction through any activities, such as New Year Party, Children’s Day, Loy Kratong Day, making
merits on Buddhist Festivals, etc. Additionally, the Company also focuses on the quality of life of all members in the

project by providing the medical checkup, vaccination for dogs, Big Cleaning event, etc.
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Developing Community and Society

Strong communities and society with sustainable development are very significant as the supporting factor for the

business operation of the Company. As a result, the Company promotes social activities continuously and participates

in enhancing strength for communities by creating qualified society, reducing or stopping negative impacts on com-

munities and society, especially impacts arising out of the operation of the Company. In addition, the Company also

supports volunteering activities relating to community and society development.

Conserving Nature and Environment

1.

Fostering employees to save and consume energy valuably, such as turning off lights during lunch break
and all computers after finishing using, adjusting the temperature of air conditioners at the saving-energy

temperature and turning them off after finishing using.

Realizing energy problems and global warming by fostering awareness of employees to help save and

support re-use of resources, such as using recycled paper for photocopying

Communicating to all employees, customers, and associated persons to be aware of the energy saving and

energy consumption with the highest worthwhileness
Using benefits from technologies in order to reduce transportation and energy consumption

Considering environment and impacts on society surrounding the construction sites, providing preventive
measures for dust and safety, noise pollution, managing wastes arising out of the construction, and providing

wastewater treatment before releasing out of the construction sites

Designing houses which help save energy and cause no impact on environment. All housing projects of the
Company are planned, managed, and controlled in terms of all production process. In addition, the Company
designs houses according to the principles of the nature by selecting and using materials which save the
energy and help reduce the global warming, such as, green tinted glasses, which help reduce the intense
and heat of the light, including filter UV and reflect heat, so the heat inside the house reduces and help less

consumption of air conditioners.

Communicating knowledge and information relating to impacts on environment and safety to all employees,

customers, and the public

Safety Operation

The Company is aware of the life, health, and property safety of employees and customer under the projects by imple-

menting the following operations;

1.

Installing CCTV in the Company for the safety of employees and around the housing projects of the Company

foe the safety of residents in the projects
Providing 24-hour security guards who have no criminal records and drug use

The Company provides the training of “Firefighting and Evacuation” once a year so that employees acknowledge
the basic preventive measures, fire exit routes, fire extinguishers usage, and safe evacuation out of the

building. This activity is the preparation in case real situations take place.
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Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSRs)

Lalin Property Public Company Limited is always mindful that we are a part of society and conscious of our impor-
tant responsibility to society as well as the community. The Company therefore regularly organizes activities to benefit
society and has consistently done so throughout. This takes the form of educational assistance with the presentation of
scholarships to schoolchildren and students; monetary donations to various charities; donations of funds and neces-

sities to victims of natural disasters such as floods; and including holding community activities through the Company’s

projects.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The board of directors approved the audit committee in line with the assessment form for the sufficiency of the
internal control systems for 2014. In summary, the company has sufficient internal controls covering five areas, namely,
internal control, risk assessment, operational control, information system and data communication, and follow-up sys-

tems. The details are as follows:
1. Internal Control

The company has set a goal for business operations that is clear, reasonable and measureable in order to be
used as an operational guideline for employees. The company has stipulated that executives and personnel perform
the duties under their obligation with integrity and moral ethics in writing. The company has communicated the impor-
tance of this matter to all employees for their awareness in the new personnel orientation. The company’s corporate
infrastructure is set for compatibility with the company’s business operations with business and legal aspects taken into
account. The company has also established an efficient internal control system. Main duties are divided to provide
check-and-balance with an Internal Audit Department reporting directly to the audit directors. A chain of command
has been set in place that is clear and appropriate. Employee roles and duties are set forth in writing so all employees
are aware of the authority, duties and responsibilities under their obligation so they can properly execute duties at full

capacity. Employees are educated and trained with the skills necessary for work operations.
2. Risk Assessment

The company places importance in risk assessment. In board meetings, risks with potential impact on the com-
pany’s business operations are assessed and considered in terms of internal and external factors by every corporate
agency or unit/duty, thereby leading to control, follow-up and management for any events occurring. In the bi-weekly
board of directors’ meetings, each line of work states problems, barriers and opportunities for corruption and presents

the measures taken in line with the risk management guidelines.
3. Operation Control

The company places clear and strict regulations on operations, procurement and budget approval authorization in
order to prevent corruption. For check-and-balance purposes, duties and responsibilities are divided into three areas,
namely, approval, Information and transaction recording and asset maintenance. The company develops its informa-
tion technology to support the business so its operations are efficient. In addition, policy and operational procedures

are regularly reviewed so they are consistently suitable for the business.
4. Information systems and data communications

The company has arranged sufficient key information available for decision-making and submits the information
to the board of directors within the legally designated period of time. Minutes to the board of directors’ meetings are
recorded in detail and kept available for proper review in terms of directors’ execution of duty. Documents for account-
ing records are stored and categorized. The company has communication channels for communication throughout
the entire company via an intranet. Department meetings are held on a monthly basis. For external communications,
the company arranges for the availability of investor relations as a communicative channel between the company and

outside investors and agencies.
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5. Monitoring/Follow-Up System

The company follows up on business performance to determine achievement of set goals. Meetings are held
with the management once a week. Executive board meetings are held bi-weekly to closely monitor work performance.
Furthermore, board of directors’ meetings are held at least five times a year to consider, analyze and evaluate whether or
not performances meets the set strategies, goals and business plans and to assure that potential problems are corrected
and operation plans are adjusted to suit the changing situations. In addition, the company also has an Internal Audit
Department to perform the duty of auditing the company’s operations in order to assess and report audit results directly
to the Audit Committee. Next, the Audit Committee reports on performance to the board of directors for awareness in
the board meeting on every occasion. For financial data, independent auditors conduct audits and render opinions.

At present, no errors in internal control on accounting have been found to significantly affect the financial statement.
As of 31 December 2014, Chief of internal audit unit is Ms.Nitthakarn Changket. Short biography as follow.
Education
«  Bachelor of Accountancy — Bangkok University (1990 — 1993)
«  Master of Business and Administration (Accountancy) - Ramkhamhaeng University (2006 — 2007)
Working Experience
» Head of Internal Audit Unit — Central Pattana PCL (1999 — 2003)
« Internal Audit Manager — Lalin Property PCL (2004 - Present)
Training Programs (in past 1 year)

«  Seminarin “Going from ‘Good’ to ‘Great’ in IT Governance and Outsourcing” arranged by Stock Exchange of

Thailand and Thailand Internal audit association

The Audit Committee has opinion that Ms.Nitthakarn Changket, Head of Internal Audit Unit of the company, has
adequate expertise and experience to efficiency act in internal auditing function. In addition, Company’s internal audit
unit is independence. The Audit Committee has duty to approve the appointment, transfer, and dismiss of the head of

internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit function.
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Related party transactions

The Company currently does not have any related party transactions. However, if company will do any related
transactions in the future, the company will determine any terms as normal commercial practice at market prices, which
may be compared with prices in transactions occurring with outside parties. The Company will assign the Audit Com-
mittee, the corporate auditors, or independent experts to review the transactions and provide their opinions as to the

suitability of pricing and justification of such items.

The Board of Directors must ensure that any future related party transactions comply with the Securities and Stock
Exchange Act, regulations, announcements, orders or conditions of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Furthermore, com-
pliance is required with regulations governing the disclosure of related party transactions and the significant acquisition,

or divestiture of securities in the Company or its subsidiaries.

Furthermore, related party transactions for the Company or its subsidiaries which may occur with individuals hav-
ing potential conflict of interest, vested interest or future conflict of interest, require the Audit Committee to review and
provide their opinion as to the necessity and suitability of the transaction. In the event that the Audit Committee does
not possess the expertise to consider the particular transaction in question, the Company will assign an independent
expert or the corporate auditors to provide an opinion. The feedback will be used in the decision making of the Board
of Directors’ or Shareholders, as may be the case. The Company will disclose details of related party transactions in

the Notes to the Financial Statements, which have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors.
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Explanation of Performance and Analysis

of Financial Position

In 2014, Lalin Property PCL. earned a total of 2,365.60 million baht in recognized revenue. This is a slight increase
from 2013, when recognized income was 2,322.81 million baht. The increase could be viewed also as increase by 1.84
percent, which is considered a lower number that what was predicted. Hence, the aforementioned is due to multiple
factors in 2014 that affected performance, especially during the first half of the year when political protests affected the
government’s ability to allocate budgets for expenses and investments. Furthermore, the aforementioned political conflict
lowered consumer and entrepreneur confidence. In 2014, the Thai economy was able to grow by only 0.7 percent from
a previously projected 3-4 percent of growth early in the year. The aforementioned impact delayed some consumer

purchase decisions, particularly during the first half of the year.

As for profit-making ability, the company was able to consistently and effectively manage funds. And the company’s
overall profitability ratios are better than the mean score for the industry. In 2014, the company’s gross profit margin
was 38.55 percent, which was higher than the mean score of approximately 35.05 percent achieved by the industry.
This reflected the company’s effective management of direct funds, whether in land purchasing power or construction
services. Therefore, the company applied a new construction system to the company’s construction, e.g., pre-cast and
tunnel form systems, in order to increase management effectiveness. As a result, the company’s sales increased, but
expenses and management costs decreased. The company’s ratio of expenses in sales and management of company
income compared to the mean score for the industry was 18.3 percent, which is considered a highly superior number to
the industry’s mean and very effectively reflected the company’s ability to control costs in work management. Furthermore,
the company’s financial cost in 2014 was 29.39 million baht. This is a decrease from the value in 2013, which equaled
38.05 million baht. When the financial costs per sale are considered, the ratio decreased from 1.64 percent in 2013 to
1.24 in 2014. This helped the company increase its interest coverage ratio from the previous number of 14.81 in 2013
to become 19.54 in 2014. In 2014, therefore, the company distributed debentures twice. The debentures were valued
at 250 million baht for Debenture No. 1/2557 at three-year duration and 4.22 percent fixed interest rate and 100 million

baht for Debenture No. 2/2557 at three-year duration and 4.00 fixed interest rate.

Furthermore, the company’s net profit in 2014 was 434.85 million baht. This is an increase from the profit of 418.31
million baht in 2013 of by up to 3.96 percent. One cause for this was the company’s increased recognized income of
1.84 percent and the company’s improved management of various costs, especially costs for sales, management and
financial expenses. Therefore, the company’s net profit grew in 2014 at a net profit margin of 18.24 percent, which is an

improvement from the 17.93 percent for the year before and is better than the industry’s mean score.

For the company’s balance sheet as of 31 December 2014, the company’s total assets equaled 7,348.26 million
baht. This is an increase from the previous end-of-year by 438.55 million baht, or an increase by about 6.35 percent in
which 219.19 million baht was an increase in liabilities accounts and 219.37 million baht was an increase in shareholders’
equity. The relevant assets that changed were as follows: 1. Inventory account, which increased by 511.79 million
baht to equal 6,326.14 million baht due to the company’s launching of six new projects in 2014 to support business
growth; 2. Cash and cash equivalent transactions and securities investments for sale, which are accounts where the
company reserves cash with government bond funds in order to obtain better returns than deposits made with ordinary
commercial banks; the aforementioned accounts decreased by 55.30 million baht to 200.97; 3. The account for land
pending development decreased from by 151.24 million baht to 383.65 million baht; this is a decrease as a result of
transfers made to the inventory account for newly launched projects. In terms of accounting when new projects are
launched, all of the land pending development in the newly launched projects is to be transferred in to the inventory
account. In 2014, the company transferred land pending development valued at 469.22 million baht into the inventory

account in line with the company’s launching of new projects.
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For liabilities as of 2014, the company’s total liabilities equaled 2,834.97 million baht divided into 15,89.66 million

baht in short-term liabilities and 1,245.31 million baht in long-term liabilities. The increase in short-term liabilities was due

to: 1. As of the end of 2014, the company'’s three-year duration debentures previously issued in 2012 in which 800 million
baht was due for repayment in 2015 were considered debentures due for payment within one year; hence accounting
types were transferred into short-term liabilities. 2. Account overdraws and short-term loans taken from financial institutions
increased from the year before by 203.29 million baht due to the company’s additional issuance of promissory notes.
The promissory notes are considered low-cost financial sources. As of the end of 2014, the company had issued and
used 200 million baht in six-month promissory notes at an interest rate of 2.95 percent interest rate. For the company’s
long-term liabilities, the amount decreased by 786.90 million baht. Part of this is due to transfers of debentures due for
repayment within one year into short-term liabilities and the company’s repayment of long-term loans to a commercial
bank in advance by 500 million baht. Hence, the company issued 350 million baht of new three-year debentures in 2014

that were offered to no more than ten specific investors (PP10).

As of the end of 2014, the company’s shareholders’ equity equaled 4,513.29 million baht. This is an increase from
2013 by 219.37 million baht. The company’s D/E ratio as of the end of 2014 was 0.63 times, which is considered very
low compared to the industry mean of approximately 1.39 times. The aforementioned number shows the company’s
potential for large future growth and the company’s ability to handle situations if an economic recession occurs at an
unexpected level of severity. Due to the fact that the company’s D/E ratio is low, the company will avoid liquidity and

financial sources problems.

Lastly, the company paid dividends to shareholders twice in 2014: on 16 May 2014 at 0.125 baht per share for a
total amount of 103.125 million baht (as payment for the company’s performance in the second half of 2013) and on 12
September at 0.135 baht for a total amount of 111.375 million baht (as payment for the company’s performance in the
first half of 2014). Furthermore, additional payments are being proposed to the company’s annual general shareholders’
meeting for approval of dividend payment to shareholders for performance of the second half of 2014 at 0.135 baht for
a total amount of 111.375 million baht. The aforementioned dividend payment is due on 15 May of 2015. In summary,
dividend payment for the company’s performance in 2014 equaled 0.27 baht per share, or calculated as 51.34 percent
of dividend payment ratio. Over the past ten years, the company has always paid dividends at approximately 40-55

percent of the company’s net profi.
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Statement of the Board of Director’s Responsibilities

to the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial statements of Lalin Public Company Limited, as well as the
financial information presented in the 2014 Annual Report. These financial statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, using appropriate accounting principles that are applied on a consistent basis.
Furthermore, cautious judgment and the best estimates for financial projections are exercised in the preparation of the
statements. Every care is taken to ensure adequate disclosure of information in the Notes to the Financial Statements,

for the benefit of Shareholders as well as general investors and in the interests of transparency.

The Company’s Board of Directors has implemented an appropriate risk assessment system, as well as a system
of internal controls, to engender confidence in the accuracy, completeness and sufficiency of accounting information
to maintain the Company'’s assets. Moreover, this serves as a safeguard against dishonest or other abnormal activities

of a significant nature.

In this regards, the Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee to review the quality of the financial statements,
the internal audit report and including the system for risk management. The recommendations of the Audit Committee

in this regard are presented in the Report of the Audit Committee as shown in the Annual Report.

The Company'’s Financial Statements have been duly inspected by the corporate auditors, Ms. Wanraya Puttasatiean
(Certified No. 4387) of S.K. Accountant Services Co., Ltd. As part of the audit process, the Board of Directors determined
the policy guidelines for management to provide adequate supporting information and documentation, thereby allowing
the auditors to conduct the audit and provide their opinions in line with auditing standards. The auditors’ opinions are

shown in the Auditors’ Report section of the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the Company’s overall internal control systems are
of a satisfactory standard and are able to offer reasonable confidence that the annual Financial Statements of Lalin
Property Public Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2014 are credible and comply with generally accepted

accounting standards, as well as the relevant regulations.

C Utte—

(Mr. Taveesak Watcharakkawong) (Mr. Chaiyan Chakarakul)

Chairman Managing Director
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of Lalin Property PCL is composed of three independent directors who are qualified experts,

namely, Mr. Suwan Tansathit, Chairman of the Audit Committee; Assoc Prof. Nipat Jitprasong, and Mr. Sathit Chanchaokul,

Audit Director. Every member of the Audit Committee is required to possess the qualifications pursuant to the notification

of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand.

The Audit Committee operated independently and in full capacity as assigned by the company’s board of directors.

In 2014, a total of five meetings were held. At each meeting, the Audit Committee participated in discussions with the

company’s executives, internal auditor and account examiner. The essential details of duties performed in 2014 can be

summarized as follows:

1.

The Audit Committee audited the quarterly financial statement and financial statement for 2014. The auditor
examined and audited the aforementioned before presentation to the company’s board of directors for approval.
The auditor and managers were reviewed to determined whether the aforementioned audit was performed
according to generally accepted accounting standards, data was sufficiently disclosed and meetings had
been attended with the auditor in which the management was not present for independent discussion of
important issues in preparing the financial statement and disclosure of information beneficial to users of the
financial statement, including acknowledgement of the audit plan for 2014. The Audit Committee rendered
the opinion that the aforementioned financial reports are correct, complete and credible and that information
was sufficiently disclosed.

The company’s Audit Committee examined the company’s system for internal control and risk management in
order to evaluate the adequacy and efficiency of the internal control and risk management system according
to the standard set for internal control and guidelines set by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
Audit Committee examined the internal audit results according to the annual plan created according to risk
standard criteria, hearing of explanations from the auditor about the internal control system, and commented
and exchanged risk knowledge and information that may affect the company with the company’s board of
directors regularly every quarter. The company’s Audit Committee rendered the opinion that the company
has adequate and effective risk management and internal control.

The Audit Committee examined practice in compliance with laws concerning stocks and stock exchange,
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and regulations related to the company’s business. The Audit
Committee commented that the company is acting in accordance with laws concerning stocks and stock
exchange, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and laws related to the company’s business, and
found no business transactions fitting the criteria for related transactions or transactions with potential conflicts
of interest.

The Audit Committee directed internal control in order to ensure effective operations and concise and adequate
internal control. The Audit Committee examined work missions, scope, responsibilities and freedom and
made beneficial recommendations to improve work and audit methods preventively, along with evaluating
audit plans yearly. The Audit Committee commented that the company’s internal audit system is in place
independently, sufficiency and efficiently, and the company makes improvements to audit quality both on
the aspect of people development and audit practices.

The Audit Committee selected and proposed for appointment and proposed the remunerations for the auditor
in 2015 by basing independent operational results and adequacy of the auditing fee for proposal to the
company’s board of directors for further approval request at the shareholders’ meeting. The Audit Committee
proposed S.K. Accountant Services CO., LTD as the company’s auditor for 2015 and the remuneration to be
775,000 baht.
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The Audit Committee has fully performed its duties as assigned by the company’s board of directors. The committee
fully exercised its knowledge and skills independently and sufficiency and without limitations in regards to information
access, and the committee has rendered its opinion on the overall picture that the company reported its financial
information and actions correctly and appropriately, has an internal control system in place with internal audits and
proper risk management that are sufficient and in compliance with laws, regulations and obligations. In addition, the
company continuously promotes good corporate governance, transparency and credibility. Moreover, the company
continuously improves work systems for the equal benefits of stakeholders.

(Mr.Suvarn Tansathit)

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED, which com-
prise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in shareholders’ equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in
accordance with Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material mis-
statement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit pro-
cedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness

of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of LALIN PROPERTY

PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED as at 31 December 2014, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended 31 December 2013, were
audited by another auditor in the same firm as me who expressed an unmodified opinion as report dated 19 February 2014.

Tnn oral 2%)@3»\({'"
(Chantra Wongsri-Udomporn)
Authorized Auditor No. 4387

S.K. Accountant Services Company Limited
Bangkok,
24 February 2015
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22,888,796.25
55,251,726.85
6,326,140,580.70

73,458,542.08
54,498,230.68
5,814,355,401.18

6,404,281,103.80

5,942,312,173.94

178,083,910.02
372,511,164.66
383,645,571.42
49.86
5,917,466.95
3,819,814.73
943,977,977.64

182,817,621.10
233,485,797.13
534,882,671.42
5,372.00
12,748,994.01
3,451,915.73
967,392,271.39

7,348,259,081.44

6,909,704,445.33




LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2014

31 December 2014 | 31 December 2013

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 22,888,796.25 73,458,542.08
Trade and Other Account Receivables - Net 7 55,251,726.85 54,498,230.68
Inventories 8 6,326,140,580.70 5,814,355,401.18

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 6,404,281,103.80 5,942,312,173.94

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Available-for-Sale Investments 9 178,083,910.02 182,817,621.10
Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 10 372,511,164.66 233,485,797.13
Land Held to Development 383,645,571.42 534,882,571.42
Other Intangible Assets - Net 1 49.86 5,372.00
Deferred Tax Assets 12 5,917,466.95 12,748,994.01
Other Non-Current Assets 3,819,814.73 3,451,915.73
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 943,977,977.64 967,392,271.39
TOTAL ASSETS 7,348,259,081.44 6,909,704,445.33

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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14
15
18

16

17
18
12

19
16

20

21

uln

212,425,474.07
199,208,772.22
799,427,693.26

73,188.00
37,595,289.00
340,927,179.97

31 Suo1Au 2557 31 SudnAu 2556

uln

9,133,933.57
207,286,574.09

64,842.00
40,337,397.56
326,750,305.36

1,589,657,596.52

583,573,052.58

150,000,000.00
978,109,813.43
71,957.50
13,761.63
29,304,524.13
87,811,821.22

500,000,000.00
1,426,729,937.32
83,513.50
260,472.60
27,722,883.46
77,412,941.59

1,245,311,877.91

2,032,209,748.47

2,834,969,474.43 2,615,782,801.05
925,000,000.00 925,000,000.00
825,000,000.00 825,000,000.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
3,096,519,033.49
55,046.58

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
2,876,164,226.94
1,041,890.40

4,513,289,607.01

4,293,921,644.28

7,348,259,081.44

6,909,704,445.33




LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statements of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2014

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions
Trade and Other Account Payables
Current Portion of Debentures
Current Portion of Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements
Accrued Income Taxes
Short-Term Provisions
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-Term Borrowings
Debentures
Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Employee Benefits Obligation
Long-Term Provisions
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share Capital
Authorized Share Capital
925,000,000 Ordinary Shares @ Baht 1.00
Issued and Paid-Up Share Capital
825,000,000 Ordinary Shares @ Baht 1.00
Premium Account on Ordinary Share
Retained Earnings
Appropriated
Legal Reserve
Unappropriated
Other Components of Equity
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Notes

14
15
17

16

17

18

12
19
16

20

21

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

31 December 2014

212,425,474.07
199,208,772.22
799,427,693.26
73,188.00
37,595,289.00
340,927,179.97

31 December 2013

9,133,933.57
207,286,574.09
64,842.00
40,337,397.56
326,750,305.36

1,589,657,596.52

583,573,052.58

150,000,000.00
978,109,813.43
71,957.50
13,761.63
29,304,524.13
87,811,821.22

500,000,000.00
1,426,729,937.32
83,513.50
260,472.60
27,722,883.46
77,412,941.59

1,245,311,877.91

2,032,209,748.47

2,834,969,474.43

2,615,782,801.05

925,000,000.00

825,000,000.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
3,096,519,033.49

925,000,000.00

825,000,000.00

499,215,526.94

92,500,000.00
2,876,164,226.94

55,046.58 1,041,890.40
4,513,289,607.01 4,293,921,644.28
7,348,259,081.44 6,909,704,445.33
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31 SudnAu 2557 31 SudnAu 2556

uBIng uan un
2,365,597,203.00 2,322,805,510.00
(1,453,563,687.21)  (1,407,413,064.21)
912,033,515.79 915,392,445.79
18,201,111.77 10,649,372.85
(91,966,337.00) (89,811,549.00)
(134,782,473.51) (145,083,432.35)
(129,134,712.00) (127,605,036.15)
(29,392,856.28) (38,048,347.97)
544,958,248.77 525,493,453.17
24 (110,103,441.56) (107,186,303.86)
434,854,807.21 418,307,149.31
(986,843.82) 1,021,657.83
(986,843.82) 1,021,657.83

433,867,963.39

419,328,807.14

0.53

0.51



LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the years ended December 31, 2014

Revenue from Sale

Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

Other Incomes

Specific Business Tax and Transfer Fee
Selling Expenses

Administrative Expenses

Finance Costs

Profit Before Income Tax

(1,453,563,687.21)

31 December 2014 | 31 December 2013

2,365,597,203.00

2,322,805,510.00
(1,407,413,064.21)

912,033,515.79
18,201,111.77
(91,966,337.00)
(134,782,473.51)
(129,134,712.00)
(29,392,856.28)

915,392,445.79
10,649,372.85
(89,811,549.00)
(145,083,432.35)
(127,605,036.15)
)

(38,048,347.97

544,958,248.77

525,493,453.17

Income Tax Expense (Revenue) 23 (110,103,441.56) (107,186,303.86)
Profit for the year 434,854,807.21 418,307,149.31
Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) - Net of Income Tax

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Available-for-Sale Investments (986,843.82) 1,021,657.83
Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the year - Net of Income Tax (986,843.82) 1,021,657.83

Total Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the year 433,867,963.39 419,328,807.14

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (BAHT) 0.51 0.33

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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544,958,248.77

200,000.00
37,093,439.42
5,322.14
(6,486,631.97)
10,425.66
24,575,754.24
3,884,053.05
(2,302,412.38)
(68,801.90)
29,392,856.28

31 suonAY 2557 31 5uonAU 2556
N " S I

525,493,453.17

15,899,738.54
110,223.90
(3,279,698.66)
1,228,322.86
130,509,705.17
3,655,266.68
(1,464,540.84)
(79,401.18)
38,048,347.97

631,262,253.31

(29,865,546.61)
68,640,823.18
(367,899.00)

(11,442,136.96)

710,121,417.61

1,846,551.55
(248,947,407.80)

53,221,110.57
(45,158.00)

658,227,493.92

68,801.90
(565,725,691.69)
(106,014,023.06)

516,196,513.93

79,401.18
(9,219,826.87)
(114,825,421.10)

496,556,581.07

392,230,667.14




LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2014

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Income Tax

Adjustment to Reconcile Profit Before Income Tax to Cash Provided
(Paid) from Operating

Doubtful Debts - Trade Receiveable (Reversal)
Depreciation

Amortization of Intangible Assets

(Gain) Loss on Disposal of Available-for-Sale Investments
Written-off of Fixed Assets

Estimated Expenses (Reversal)

Employee Benefit Expenses

Actuarial Gain

Interest Incomes

Interest Expenses

Profit from Operating Activities before Changes in Operating Assets
and Liabilities

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets
Trade and Other Account Receivables
Inventories
Other Non-Current Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade and Other Account Payables
Other Non-Current Liabilities
Cash Received (Paid) from Operating Activities
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUE)
Cash Received from Interest Incomes
Cash Payment for Interest Expenses Capitalized as Cost of Inventories
Cash Payment for Income Tax Expenses and Withholding Income Taxes

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

544,958,248.77

200,000.00
37,093,439.42
5,322.14
(6,486,631.97)
10,425.66
24,575,754.24
3,884,053.05
(2,302,412.38)
(68,801.90)
29,392,856.28

31 December 2014 | 31 December 2013

525,493,453.17

15,899,738.54
110,223.90
(3,279,698.66)
1,228,322.86
130,509,705.17
3,655,266.68
(1,464,540.84)
(79,401.18)
38,048,347.97

631,262,253.31

(29,865,546.61)
68,640,823.18
(367,899.00)

(11,442,136.96)

710,121,417.61

1,846,551.55
(248,947,407.80)

53,221,110.57
(45,158.00)

658,227,493.92

68,801.90
(55,725,691.69)
(106,014,023.06)

516,196,513.93

79,401.18
(9,219,826.87)
(114,825,421.10)

496,556,581.07

392,230,667.14

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(1,100,000,000.00)
1,109,986,788.26
(200,947,964.81)
(317,980,577.00)
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(1,089,000,000.00)

991,000,000.00
(106,213,557.37
(70,630,000.00

(508,941,753.55)

)
)
(510,812,147.00)
(785,655,704.37)

3,291,540.50
250,000,000.00
(50,000,000.00)
160,000,000.00
(510,000,000.00)
350,000,000.00
(882,750.00)
(64,842.00
(26,046,660.02

(108,137,459.14)
150,000,000.00
(50,000,000.00)
(500,000.00)
630,000,000.00
(2,113,250.00)
(69,336.00)
(30,527,230.38)

(197,911,168.50)

(38,184,573.35

390,741,555.98

)
)
(214,481,861.83)
)
)

(50,569,745.83
73,458,542.08

(2,683,481.25)
76,142,023.33

22,888,796.25

73,458,542.08




LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2014

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Payment for Purchase of Available-for-Sale Investments

Cash Received from Disposal of Available-for-Sale Investments

Cash Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets

Cash Payment for Land Deposit

Cash Payment for Purchase of Land Held to Development
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (Decrease) in Overdrafts

Cash Payment for Liabilities under Finance Lease Agreements

Cash Received from Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Cash Payment for Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Cash Received from Long-Term Borrowings

Cash Payment for Long-Term Borrowings

Cash Received from Sale of Debenture

Cash Payment for Debenture Issued Expenses

Cash Payment for Interest Expenses

Cash Payment for Dividends
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCREASE (DECREASE)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENDING OF THE PERIOD

(1,100,000,000.00)
1,109,986,788.26
(200,947,964.81)
(317,980,577.00)

(1,089,000,000.00)
991,000,000.00
(106,213,557.37)
(70,630,000.00)
(510,812,147.00)

(508,941,753.55)

(785,655,704.37)

3,291,540.50
(64,842.00)
250,000,000.00
(50,000,000.00)
160,000,000.00
(510,000,000.00)
350,000,000.00
(882,750.00)
(26,046,660.02)
(214,481,861.83)

(108,137,459.14)
(69,336.00)
150,000,000.00
(50,000,000.00)
(500,000.00)
630,000,000.00
(2,113,250.00)
(30,527,230.38)
(197,911,168.50)

(38,184,573.35)

390,741,555.98

(50,569,745.83)
73,458,542.08

(2,683,481.25)
76,142,023.33

22,888,796.25

73,458,542.08

Note to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LALIN PROPERTY PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

Notes To Financial Statements

As of December 31, 2014

1. General Information

The Company was registered under the Civil and Commercial Code as a corporate entity on 8 November 1988,
registration number 8781/2531 and convert to the Public Company Limited on 3 September 2002, registration number
0107545000233. Its registered office located at 222/2 Srinakharin Road, Huamark, Bangkapi, Bangkok, Thailand. Its prin-

cipal activity is property development for sales.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards of Thailand includ-
ing related interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions, applicable rules and

regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

The financial statements were presented in compliance with the notifiaction of Department of Business Development
regarding “Brief particulars must be contained in financial statements B.E. 2554” dated 28 September 2011, notified ac-
cording to Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

In order to prepare the financial statements to comply with financial reporting standards, the Company’s management
had to make some estimates and assumptions which may have an effect on the amount shown for revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and also on the disclosures concerning assets and contingent liabilities, therefore the actual result
may differ from the estimated amount.

The financial report in Thai language is the official statutory financial report of the Company. The financial report in

English language has been translated from the Thai language financial report.

3. The Adoption of New Accounting Policies

The Company adopted the conceptual framework for financial statements, accounting standards, financial reporting
standards, interpretations accounting standards and accounting guidances, which are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with no impact to the current financial statements.

New Financial Reporting Standards which not yet Effective

New accounting standards, financial reporting standards, accounting standards interpretations and financial report-
ing standards interpretations, which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 and 2016,

which the Company has not early applied are as follows:

Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2015

TAS 1 (revised 2014) Presentation of Financial Statements

TAS 2 (revised 2014) Inventories

TAS 7 (revised 2014) Statement of Cash Flows

TAS 8 (revised 2014) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimate and Errors
TAS 10 (revised 2014) Events After the Reporting Period

TAS 11 (revised 2014) Construction Contracts

TAS 12 (revised 2014) Income Taxes
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Notes To Financial Statements

TAS 16 (revised 2014)
TAS 17 (revised 2014)
TAS 18 (revised 2014)
TAS 19 (revised 2014)
TAS 20 (revised 2014)
TAS 21 (revised 2014)
TAS 23 (revised 2014)
TAS 24 (revised 2014)
TAS 26 (revised 2014)
TAS 27 (revised 2014)
TAS 28 (revised 2014)
TAS 29 (revised 2014)
TAS 33 (revised 2014)
TAS 34 (revised 2014)
TAS 36 (revised 2014)
TAS 37 (revised 2014)
TAS 38 (revised 2014)
TAS 40 (revised 2014)
TFRS 2 (revised 2014)
TFRS 3 (revised 2014)
TFRS 5 (revised 2014)
TFRS 6 (revised 2014)
TFRS 8 (revised 2014)
TFRS 10

TFRS 11

TFRS 12

TFRS 13

SIC 10 (revised 2014)
SIC 15 (revised 2014)
SIC 25 (revised 2014)
SIC 27 (revised 2014)
SIC 29 (revised 2014)
SIC 31 (revised 2014)
SIC 32 (revised 2014)
TFRIC 1 (revised 2014)

TFRIC 4 (revised 2014)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

Earnings per Share

Interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Share-based Payment

Business Combinations

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discounted Operations
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Operating Segments

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Government Assistance-No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
Operating Leases-Incentives

Income Taxes-Changes in the Tax Status of an Enterprise or its Shareholders
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form of a Lease
Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

Revenue-Barter Transactions involving Advertising Services

Intangible Assets-Web Site Costs

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities

Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease
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Notes To Financial Statements

Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning,
TFRIC 5 (revised 2014) Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporting in

TFRIC 7 (revised 2014) Hyperinflationary Economies

TFRIC 10 (revised 2014) Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
TFRIC 12 (revised 2014) Service Concession Arrangements

TFRIC 13 (revised 2014) Customer Loyalty Programmer

IAS 19-The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirement

TFRIC 14 and their Interaction

TFRIC 15 (revised 2014) Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

TFRIC 17 (revised 2014) Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

TFRIC 18 (revised 2014) Transfers of Assets from Customers

TFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Effective for the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2016

TFRS 4 (revised 2014) Insurance Contracts

The management of the Company believes that above financial reporting standards will not have any significant

impact on the financial statements when they are applied.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Significant Accounting Policies

Measurements bases used in the Preparation of Financial Statements

Measurement bases used in the preparation of inancial statements are historical cost measurement basis and
combination of variety measurement bases used. Some assets and liabilities that use other measurement bases

have been disclosed the measurement bases used in the particular accounting policies.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets were shown in the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other account receivables. Financial liabilities were shown in the statement of financial position include trade and
other account payables, borrowings, debentures and liabilities under finance lease agreements which the accounting

policies on recognition and measurement of these items are disclosed in the respective accounting policies.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes bank deposit in type of current accounts, savings accounts, and 3 months

fixed accounts without guarantee obligation.

Trade and Other Account Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Trade and other account receivables are stated at the net realizable value. Allowance for doubtful debts is

provided for the estimated collection losses that may incur in collection of receivable.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Inventory is composed of land costs,

land development costs, various public utility costs, construction costs and related borrowing costs.

Annual Report 2014
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Notes To Financial Statements

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

Available-for-Sale Investments

Available-for-Sale investments which is investments in marketable securities that the Company classified as
available-for-sale investments are stated at the fair value. The fair value of unit trust is the price announced from
the fund as at the date of the statement of financial position. The Company recognized the change of value as
separate caption in shareholders’ equity and will be recognized in profit or loss when the Company has disposed

such investments or the investments is impaired.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Land are stated at cost on date the transaction occur, plant and equipment are stated at cost on date the
transaction occur less accumulated depreciation and accumulated loss on impairment (if any). Depreciation is

calculated on a straight-line basis on their estimated useful life as follows:

Land Improvements 20 Years
Buildings 20 Years
Buildings-Clubhouses and Swimming Pool 5 Years
Office Equipment 3and5 Years
Office Furniture 5 Years
Vehicles 5and 10 Years

For central utility, clubhouses buildings, garden and playgrounds which were built before the Land Allotment
Act B.E. 2543 was enforceable, the Company will record as part of property, plant and equipment. For central utility,
clubhouses buildings, garden and playgrounds which were built after the Land Allotment Act B.E. 2543 was enforceable
and the Company intended as public service, the Company will record as part of inventory and will amortize as cost

of sales in proportion to saleable areas of each project.

Repair and maintenance is recognized as expense in profit or loss during the period that it is incurred.
Replacement cost is recognized as a part of carrying amount of assets when it is probable that the Company will
obtain the future economic benefits from that transaction and able to measure the cost of that transaction reliably.

Replacement cost will be depreciated by the basis of estimated useful life.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is computed from the difference between net proceeds

and the carrying amount and recognized as revenue or expense in profit or loss.

Intangible Assets and Amortization
Package Computer Software license

Acquired package computer software license is capitalized from the costs incurred to acquire and bring
that package computer software to ready for intended use, are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated loss on impairment (if any). Amortization is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated

useful life for the period of 5 years.

Land held to development

Land held to development are stated at cost on date the transaction occur less accumulated loss on impairment

(if any).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production or development of each project
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. The Company will
record to deferred interest and present as a part of inventories of each project. The Company will cease the record
when the project is complete or sold or faced with problem of delay while the proceeding of further development
incurs. For the interest incurred from loan to acquire land held to development but not yet developed. The Company
will record such interest expense as expense in the profit or loss.
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Notes To Financial Statements

5.1

5.12

5.13

5.14

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated of asset or
its cash-generating unit to which the asset is included in the recognition of an impairment loss when the recoverable
amount less than the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit.

Loss on impairment is recognized as expenses in profit or loss immediately.

Calculation of Recoverable Amount

- The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell of asset or the cash-
generating unit and its value in use.

- In assessing value in use of an asset by estimating the present value of future cash flows generated by
the asset, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

- The asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversal of impairment

- The loss on impairment of assets recognized in the prior period will be reversed if the estimation for
indicated net realizable value changes since the last impairment loss was recognized. The carrying
amount of the asset not exceed just to be the carrying amount that would have been (net of depreciation
or amortization), if no impairment loss had been recognized.

- Reversal of loss on impairment will be recognized as income in profit or loss.

Employees Benefit

Short-term Employee Benefits

- The Company is recognized salary, wage, bonus and social security fund are expenses on the date that the
transaction occur.

Long-term Employee Benefits

- The Company provides for post-employment benefits to or retirement indemnity employees under the labor
laws applicable in Thailand. The Company has recognized employee benefits obligation which are the present
value of the defined benefit obligations calculated by the management of the Company in accordance with the
actuarial technique. The present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined by discounting estimated
future cash flows using yields on the government bonds which have terms to maturity approximating the terms
of related liability. The estimated future cash flows shall reflect employee salaries, turnover rate, mortality rate,
length of service and other. The Company recorded employee benefits obligation as non-current liabilities.
The costs associated with employee benefits are charged in profit or loss so as to spread the cost over the

employment period during which the entitlement to benefits is earned.

Provision

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized
as a separate asset but only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received if the obligation is

settled which the amount recognized should not exceed the amount of provision.

Leases

The Company is the lessee

Long-term leases which substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated to the principal and to the finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The outstanding lease obligations less
finance charges are recorded as liabilities. The assets acquired under finance leases will be depreciated throughout

the estimated useful life of that leased asset. However, if there is uncertainty in the right of ownership when the
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Notes To Financial Statements

contract is terminated, depreciation will be calculated on the estimated useful life of leased assets or the lease term
whichever the period is lower.

Long-term leases not transferring a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lesser)
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease term has expired, any payment required to be made

to the lesser such as of penalty will be recognized as expense in the period that the termination incurs.

5.15 Recognition of Revenues

The Company are recognized as revenue from sales of land and houses and condominium when the ownership is transferred

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

to the buyers.
Recognition of Cost of Sales

The Company are recognized cost of sales of land and houses and condominium, the Company allocates
cost of the entire development anticipated to incur of each project (considering actual cost) to land and house sold
in proportion to saleable areas, of each project and recognized as cost of sales in proportion of saleable areas of
each project.
Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss
except to the extent that related to items recognized in other comprehensive income or recognized directly in equity
which will recognize in other comprehensive income or recognized directly in equity as same as that items.
Current Tax

Current tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based
on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation, using the tax rates enacted at the end of reporting
period.
Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end of reporting period.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that the related tax benefit will

be realized.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the period by the weighted average number

of issued and paid-up ordinary shares.

There is no calculation of the fully diluted earnings per share since it has no ordinary share equivalents.

Appropriation of Retained Earnings

The appropriation of retained earnings is attributable to the Public Company Act B.E. 2535. The Company will
appropriate the retained earnings when it is approved at the board of directors meeting which will be reported to the

shareholders’ meeting.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

In order to prepare the financial statements to comply with financial reporting standards, the Company’s
management had to make some judgment and estimates which may have an effect on the amount shown in financial
statements and notes to financial statements, therefore the actual result may differ from the estimated amount.

Significant accounting judgments and estimates are as follows:
Lease

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the management is
required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset have been

transferred, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.
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Notes To Financial Statements

Allowance for Doubtful Debts — Trade Account Receivables

In determining an allowance for doubtful debts, the management needs to make judgment and estimates based
upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic

condition.
Project Development Costs Estimation

In calculating cost of land and houses sold and residential condominium units, the Company has to estimate
all project development costs, comprising land and land improvement costs, design and construction costs, public
utility costs, borrowing costs and other related costs. The management has estimated these costs based on the
business experience and revised the estimations on a periodical basis or when the actual costs incurred significantly

vary from the estimated costs.
Property, Plant and Equipment, Land Held to Development and Depreciation
In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimated useful

lives and residual values of the Company’s plant and equipment and to review estimatd useful lives and residual

values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment and land held to development
for impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses in the period when it is determined that their
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues

and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
Intangible Assets and Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, and are subject to impairment if there is an
indication they may be impaired.
Post-Employment Benefits under Defined Benefit Plan

The obligation under defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuations. Inherent within these
calculations are assumptions as to discount rates, future salary increases, turnover rate, mortality rate and other
demographic factors. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management selects an interest rate that
reflects the current economic situation, and the mortality rate from mortality rate table which is publicized in Thailand.
Actual post-retirement costs may ultimately differ from these estimates.
Provision for Maintenance of Project Utilities

The Company estimate the contribution to the housing juristic persons using the rate specified by the regulator
and the budgeted public utilities costs as a basis for the calculation.
Lawsuits

The Company have contingent liabilities as a result of lawsuits. The management has used the judgment to

assess of the results of the lawsuits as at the end of reporting period. However, actual results could differ from the

estimates.

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consist of:

As at As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Baht Baht
Cash 2,792,097.16 2,976,043.77
Current Accounts Deposit 61,659.06 61,659.06
Savings Accounts Deposit 1,546,970.03 6,196,794.25
Cheque on hand 18,488,070.00 64,224,045.00
Total 22,888,796.25 73,458,542.08
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Notes To Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the whole amount of cheque on hand were cashier cheque which the Company

is able to draw the money in full amount after the reporting date.

7. Trade and Other Account Receivables — Net

Consist of:

Trade Account Receivables
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Trade Account Receivables — Net

Other Account Receivables
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Other Account Receivables — Net

Total

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, trade account receivables are classified by aging as follows:

Within Credit term

Over due 1 -3 months

Over due 3 — 12 months

Over due more than 12 months
Total

Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Net

As at

31 December 2014
Baht

2,531,335.00
(2,531,335.00)

60,773,595.02
(5,521,868.17)
55,251,726.85
55,2561,726.85

As at

31 December 2014
Baht

2,531,335.00
2,531,335.00
(2,531,335.00)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, other account receivables are as follows:

As at

31 December 2014

As at

31 December 2013

Baht
2,5631,335.00
(2,331,335.00)
200,000.00

59,820,098.85
(5,521,868.17)
54,298,230.68
54,498,230.68

As at

31 December 2013

Baht

2,531,335.00
2,5631,335.00
(2,331,335.00)
200,000.00

As at

31 December 2013

Baht Baht
Prepaid Expenses 26,499,118.68 23,972,626.64
Advance Payment 18,638,238.69 16,322,863.53
Withholding Tax 5,507,055.93 5,507,055.93
Advance Payment for Goods 9,849,669.07 13,161,440.10
Others 279,512.65 856,112.65
Total 60,773,595.02 59,820,098.85

Less Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Net

(5,521,868.17)
55,251,726.85

(5,521,868.17)
54,298,230.68

Annual Report 2014

Lalin Property Public Company Limited

149



KHU1EInAUSNOUIUNISIIU

o o o

AmFuTlAugaIui 31 funaw 2557 waz 2556 AHantaduazgaisanisaaenlasil

a

dansutl
dugndun

31 SudnAu 2557

31 Sud1AU 2556

& 9
RAALYIADALNAA
UIN ALNNTEUINNIA
HARAAIUARLIANENTA

8. dun1AdInas

dsznavudag

uln
(7,853,203.17)
(200,000.00)
(8,053,203.17)

fu 3ui

31 SudnAu 2557

uan
(7,853,203.17)

(7,853,203.17)

fu 3ui

31 Sud1AU 2556

Y o @

guAndiagy
T B
TufletanFaNNALNe Y
% 1% ‘de
TunFaNNmu
UL
N
UFENINaNBAF
v v o’ o
VAT R B HELEEAN
AR UIR ATy

L 32 3)

o

a1yl inAsesniinyd
ITUTENTINNN — LATRIANULGIN
794

uln

141,239,661.37
249,867,695.96

1,773,640,266.16
1,867,866,946.91
141,587,708.17
528,693,798.89
1,615,361,798.81
7,882,704.43
6,326,140,580.70

uln

149,746,894.31
249,085,400.38

1,683,768,959.65
1,659,929,198.38
90,068,771.82
487,157,109.18
1,411,367,270.28
83,231,797.18
5,814,355,401.18

o JUT 31 SUAN 2557 LAz 2556 13ENY THtininunandelgnaie gasmnuiingd a1uimik 3,325.68 §1unm uas
AUIURY 2,276.92 Arunn auaau llandanueadunannindandsyiududanldiuainaniiun1sRu auusnewme 13

AmFLTIAugnIun 31 furnaw 2557 uay 2556 130+ Ihsusununisiiinddumaimuaesaiussudtaimmn aauou
R 70.49 11U LAZATUIUEY 46.63 A1uLm ANa1AD FaduduunisginnifeainSudaduuieldiamntasanig
afaMTUNINE

9. Nuanuiliov1e

sznavsag
fu SUi fu Sui
31 SuonAU 2557 31 5uonAU 2556
un un
NeaIlATINANEUNa - 1A 178,015,101.80 181,515,258.10
uan inlsfidslsifintuasaannnisdasaen 68,808.22 1,302,363.00
NeUTATIINAEUNT — YaAYRTIN 178,083,910.02 182,817,621.10

dnsul dnsul
Augndun Augniun
31 Suo1AU 2557 31 Sud1AU 2556
un uIn

UARNELATITNFIA 182,817,621.10 80,261,835.51
%mwdwmm 1,100,000,0000.00 1,089,000,000.00
218TTNINNA (1,109,986,788.26) (991,000,000.00)
ﬂ’]TLﬂ?QIEI‘LALLﬂ@\‘IFLuNu@ﬂ"mﬁﬁi‘fm 5,253,077.18 4,555,785.59
YaAEAFITNLANEIA 178,083,910.02 182,817,621.10

shovuds:9d 2557
150 USON AdA wSowiwasa $1Ma (UML)



Notes To Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, allowance for doubtful debts has movement as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
(7,853,203.17) (7,853,203.17)
(200,000.00) -
(8,053,203.17) (7,853,203.17)

Beginning Balance
Add Increase during the period
Ending Balance

8. Inventories

Consist of:

As at As at

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht

Finished Goods
Demonstration Land and Houses for Sale

Land and Houses

Development in Progress

Land

Work in Construction

Deferred Borrowing Costs
Deferred Land Development Cost
Deferred Utilities

Work in process — Furniture

Total

141,239,661.37
249,867,695.96

1,773,640,266.16
1,867,866,946.91
141,587,708.17
528,693,798.89
1,615,361,798.81
7,882,704.43
6,326,140,580.70

149,746,894.31
249,085,400.38

1,683,768,959.65
1,659,929,198.38
90,068,771.82
487,157,109.18
1,411,367,270.28
83,231,797.18
5,814,355,401.18

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company had mortgaged land and construction, the carrying amount in
amount of Baht 3,325.68 million and in amount of Baht 2,276.92 million respectively, as collateral against credit from financial

institution as in Note 13.

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company has capitalized the borrowing costs as development
in progress in amount of Baht 70.49 million and in amount of Baht 46.63 million respectively, which it is the borrowing costs

that are incurred from the borrowing for the project development.

9. Available-for-Sale Investments

Consist of:

As at As at

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht

178,015,101.80 181,515,258.10

Add Unrealized Gain on Remeasuring 68,808.22 1,302,363.00

178,083,910.02 182,817,621.10

Bualuang Thanatavee Opened End Fund — Cost

Bualuang Thanatavee Opened End Fund — Fair Value

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, available-for-sale investments has movement as follows:
For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2013

31 December 2014
Baht Baht

Beginning Carrying Amount 182,817,621.10
1,100,000,0000.00
(1,109,986,788.26)

5,253,077.18

178,083,910.02

80,261,835.51
1,089,000,000.00
(991,000,000.00)
4,655,785.59
182,817,621.10

Purchase during the period
Disposal during the period
Changes in Fair Value
Ending Carrying Amount
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Notes To Financial Statements

11.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company had mortgaged land and building of head office, the carrying
amount in amount of Baht 41.33 million equally for both periods, as collateral against credit from financial institutions as in
Note 13.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company has assets which were fully depreciated but still in use, costing
in amount of Baht 97.56 million and in amount of Baht 105.80 million respectively, the carrying amounts are in amount of
Baht 1,984.98 and in amount of Baht 1,817.76 respectively.

Other Intangible Assets — Net

Consist of:

Package Computer

Software License
Baht

As at 31 December 2012

Costs 275,762.54
Less Accumulated Amortization (160,166.64)
Carrying Amount 115,595.90

Transactions during the year ended 31 December 2013

Purchase -
Amortization recognized in profit or loss for the period (110,223.90)
Ending Carrying Amount 5,372.00

As at 31 December 2013

Costs 275,762.54
Less Accumulated Amortization (270,390.54)
Carrying Amount 5,372.00

Transactions during the year ended 31 December 2014

Amortization recognized in profit or loss for the period (5,322.14)
Ending Carrying Amount 49.86
As at 31 December 2014

Costs 275,762.54
Less Accumulated Amortization (275,712.68)
Carrying Amount 49.86

As at 31 December 2014 , the Company has assets which were fully amortization but still in use, costing in amount

of Baht 0.28 million, the carrying amount is in amount of Baht 49.86.
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Notes To Financial Statements

12.

13.

14.

Deferred Tax Assets/Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred taxes are calculated in full on temporary differences, using the liability method and applying a principal tax
rate of 20%. The deferred taxes related to the temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of
assets and liabilities of the Company which are summarized as follows:

As at

31 December
2013

As at

31 December
2014

Recognized Recognized

in Profit (Loss) in Other
for the period Comprehensive

Income
(Expense)
Baht

Deferred Tax Assets

Trade Account Receivables - 40,000.00 - 40,000.00
Inventories 16,562.12 - - 16,562.12
Deferred Revenues 7,187,855.20  (7,187,855.20) - -
Employee Benefits Obligation 5,544,576.69 316,328.14 - 5,860,904.83
Total 12,748,994.01 (6,831,527.06) - 5,917,466.95
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Gain on Remeasuring of
Available-for-Sale Investments (260,472.60) - 246,710.97 (13,761.63)
Total (260,472.60) - 246,710.97 (13,761.63)
Net 12,488,521.41  (6,831,527.06) 246,710.97 5,903,705.32

Credit Facility and Guarantee

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has credits in form of letter of guarantee in amount of Baht 605.00 million,
credits in form of the promissory note in amount of Baht 567.80 million, credits in form of overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00
million and credits in form of long-term borrowings in amount of Baht 1,270.50 million, the Company had mortgaged land

and construction as in Note 8 and 10 as collateral.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has credits in form of letter of guarantee in amount of Baht 378.00 million,
credits in form of the promissory note in amount of Baht 524.20 million, credits in form of overdrafts in amount of Baht 85.00
million and credits in form of long-term borrowings in amount of Baht 1,109.33 million, the Company had mortgaged land

and construction as in Note 8 and 10 as collateral.

Overdrafts and Short-Term Borrowings from Financial Institutions

Consist of:
As at As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Overdrafts 12,425,474.07 9,133,933.57
Short-Term Borrowings 200,000,000.00 -
Total 212,425,474.07 9,133,933.57

As at 31 December 2014, the whole amount of short-term borrowings was a borrowing from a financial institution in

form of bill of exchange which has maturity in 181 — 196 days, carried the interest rate in the rate of 2.95% per annum.
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Notes To Financial Statements

15.

16.

Trade and Other Account Payables

Consist of:
As at As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Trade Account Payables 64,258,919.92 52,574,317.72
Other Account Payables 134,949,852.30 154,712,256.37
Total 199,208,772.22 207,286,574.09

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, other account payables as follows:

As at As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Accrued Expenses 65,278,417.39 58,712,305.85
Accrued Interest Expenses 15,747,837.72 12,401,641.46
Retention Payables 34,535,758.58 27,905,269.08
Deferred Revenues 7,955,700.00 37,700,060.00
Cheque Payables 6,726,025.35 14,274,203.31
Dividend Payables 256,472.75 238,333.92
Others 4,449,640.51 3,480,442.75
Total 134,949,852.30 154,712,256.37
Provisions
Consist of:
As at As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Short-Term Provisions for Construction Cost of Project Utilities 340,927,179.97 326,750,305.36
Long-Term Provisions for Maintenance of Project Utilities 87,811,821.22 77,412,941.59
Total 428,739,001.19 404,163,246.95

Long-term provisions for maintenance of project utilities are provisions for guarantee the maintenance of project
utilities according to the Land Allocation Act B.E. 2543 in the rate of 7% from estimated construction cost of project utilities
which the Company will settle such provision to housing juristic person to spend in the maintenance of project utilities when

the housing juristic person has been established according to the Land Allocation Act B.E. 2543.
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Notes To Financial Statements

17.

18.

Long-Term Borrowings

Consist of:

As at As at

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht

Long-Term Borrowings 150,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Less Current Portion - -

Net 150,000,000.00 500,000,000.00

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, long-term borrowings have movement as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Beginning Balance 500,000,000.00 500,500,000.00
Add Increase during the period 160,000,000.00 -
Less Repayment during the period (510,000,000.00) (500,000.00)
Ending Balance 150,000,000.00 500,000,000.00

As at 31 December 2014, the whole amount of long-term borrowings was borrowings from a financial institution for
working capital in project development with the term of principal repayment due on 36 months since the contract signing

date (19 December 2014). The interest should be paid on every month-end at constant rate in the rate of 5.00% per annum.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, long-term borrowings had mortgaged land and construction as in Note 8 and

Note 10 as collateral.

Debentures
Consist of:
As at As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2012 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2012 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2013 630,000,000.00 630,000,000.00
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 1/2014 250,000,000.00 -
Non-Subordinate Fund and Unsecured Debentures No. 2/2014 100,000,000.00 -
Total 1,780,000,000.00 1,430,000,000.00
Less Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses (2,462,493.31) (3,270,062.68)
Carrying Amount 1,777,537,506.69 1,426,729,937.32
Less Current Portion (799,427,693.26) -
Net 978,109,813.43 1,426,729,937.32
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Notes To Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, debenture has movement as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Beginning Balance 1,426,729,937.32 797,645,530.39
Issued Debentures 349,117,250.00 628,168,813.86
Amortization of Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses 1,690,319.37 915,593.07
Ending Balance 1,777,537,506.69 1,426,729,937.32

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, debentures are classified by redemption maturity as follows:

As at As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Less than 1 year 800,000,000.00 -
More than 1 year but less than 5 years 980,000,000.00 1,430,000.00
Total 1,780,000,000.00 1,430,000.00

19. Employee Benefits Obligation

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, employee benefits obligation are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Present Value of the Obligation as at 1 January 27,722,883.46 25,532,157.62
Current Service Cost 2,816,393.26 2,644,426.77
Interest Expenses 1,067,659.79 1,010,839.91
Actuarial Gain (2,302,412.38) (1,464,540.84)
Present Value of the Obligation as at 31 December 29,304,524.13 27,722,883.46

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the items which are included in the profit or loss consist of:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Current Service Cost 2,816,393.26 2,644,426.77
Interest Expenses 1,067,659.79 1,010,839.91
Actuarial Gain (2,302,412.38) (1,464,540.84)
Total 1,581,640.67 2,190,725.84
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Notes To Financial Statements

The above expenses which recognized in the profit or loss are included in the items as follows:

Other Revenue
Administrative Expenses

Total

For the year ended

31 December 2014
Baht

(2,302,412.38)

3,884,053.05

1,681,640.67

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuation were as follows:

Discount rate
Average salary increase rate
Turnover rate

Retirement age

20. Share Capital

Consist of:

For the year ended

31 December 2014
Baht

4.20% per annum

5-13% per annum

55 and 60 years old

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Par

Value
Baht

Authorized Share Capital
Beginning Ordinary Shares 1.00
Ending Ordinary Shares 1.00

Issued and Paid-up Share Capital

Beginning Ordinary Shares 1.00
Ending Ordinary Shares 1.00

21. Legal Reserve

Number of

Share
Share

925,000,000

925,000,000

825,000,000
825,000,000

Amount

Baht

925,000,000.00

925,000,000.00

825,000,000.00
825,000,000.00

5% per annum

For the year ended

31 December 2013

Baht

(1,464,540.84)
3,655,266.68
2,190,725.84

For the year ended
31 December 2013

Baht

4.20% per annum
5% per annum
5-13% perannum

55 and 60 years old

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Par

Value
Baht

1.00

1.00

1.00
1.00

Number of

Share
Share

925,000,000

925,000,000

825,000,000
825,000,000

Amount

Baht

925,000,000.00

925,000,000.00

825,000,000.00
825,000,000.00

In accordance with the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to appropriate at least 5%

of its annual net profit after deduction of any deficit brought forward as a legal reserve until the reserve reaches 10% of the

authorized share capital.

22. Dividends Payment

In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 13 August 2014, it had passed a resolution

to pay a dividend of Baht 0.135 per share from the Company’s performance in first half year (on 1 January 2014 to 30 June

2014) totaling Baht 111.37 million. The dividend will be paid within 12 September 2014.
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Notes To Financial Statements

23.

24,

In accordance with the Minute of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2014, held on 25 April 2014, it had
passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2013 to pay dividend to shareholders at Baht 0.245 per share,
totaling in amount of Baht 202.13 million which the Company had already paid the interim dividend payment at Baht 0.12
per share, totaling in amount of Baht 99.00 million on 13 September 2013, and will pay the final payment at Baht 0.125 per
share, totaling in amount of Baht 103.13 million. The dividend will be paid on 16 May 2014.

In accordance with the Minute of the Board of Directors Meeting, held on 13 August 2013, it was resolved to pay a

dividend of Baht 0.12 per share from the Company’s performance in first half year (on 1 January 2013 to 30 June 2013)
totaling Baht 99.00 million. The dividend will be paid within 13 September 2013.

In accordance with the Minute of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2013, held on 26 April 2013, it had
passed a resolution to approve the appropriation of profit for 2012 to pay dividend to shareholders at Baht 0.18 per share,
totaling in amount of Baht 148.50 million which the Company had already paid the interim dividend at Baht 0.06 per share,
totaling in amount of Baht 49.50 million on 7 September 2012, and will pay the final payment at Baht 0.12 per share, totaling
in amount of Baht 99.00 million. The dividend will be paid on 17 May 2013.

Capital Management

The objectives of the Company’s capital management are to maintain its abilities to continue as a going concern and

to maintain an appropriate capital structure.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the financial statements present the debt to equity ratio in 0.63:1 and 0.61:1

respectively.

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue

Income tax which is recognized in the profit for the period, consist of:

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht

Current Income Tax

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue for the current period (103,271,914.50) (109,958,114.12)

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred Tax (Expense) Revenue (6,831,527.06) 4,073,182.06

Impact of Change in Tax Rate - (1,301,371.80)
(6,831,527.06) 2,771,810.26

Income Tax (Expense) Revenue which is recognized in the profit
for the period (110,103,441.56) (107,186,303.86)

The differences between income tax (expense) revenue which were calculated from accounting profit at the tax rate

for year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, in 20% equally for both periods, can be presented as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Profit before Income Tax 544,958,248.77 525,493,453.17
Income Tax (Expense) Revenue calculated at the Tax Rate of 20% (108,991,649.75) (105,098,690.63)
(Expense) Revenue not deductible for Income Tax (1,111,791.81) (786,241.43)
Impact of Change in Tax Rate - (1,301,371.80)
Income Tax (Expense) Revenue which is recognized in the profit (110,103,441.56) (107,186,303.86)

for the period
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Notes To Financial Statements

23.

Income tax which is recognized in other comprehensive income (expense), consist of:

Amount
Before Tax
Baht

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Available-for-Sale
Investments (1,233,554.79)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Gain (Loss) on Remeasuring of Available-for-Sale

Investments 1,276,086.93

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Change in Fair Value of Available-for-Sale Investments
Gain during the period
Less Reclassification of (Gain) Loss which is recognized
in the profit of the period
Income Tax related to the Component of Other Comprehensive Income
(Expenses)
Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the period — Net of Income Tax
For the year ended 31 December 2013
Change in Fair Value of Available-for-Sale Investments
Gain during the period
Less Reclassification of (Gain) Loss which is recognized
in the profit of the period
Income Tax related to the Component of Other Comprehensive Income
(Expenses)

Other Comprehensive Income (Expense) for the period — Net of Income Tax

Expenses by Nature

Consist of:

Income Tax

(Expense) Revenue
Baht

246,710.97

(254,429.10)

5,253,077.18

(6,486,631.97)

4,655,785.59

(3,279,698.66)

For the year ended

31 December 2014

Change in Finished Goods and Development in Progress
Construction Materials Used and Construction Other Expenses
Employees Expense
Depreciation and Amortization
Management Remuneration Expenses
Specific Business Tax and Transfer Fee
Billboard Rental Expenses
Selling Promotion Expenses
Other Expense
Total

Baht

(511,785,179.52)
1,882,613,373.05

143,021,115.30
37,098,761.56
25,707,620.00
91,966,337.00
41,425,738.13
67,990,387.77
31,409,056.43

1,809,447,209.72

Net of Tax

Baht

(986,843.82)

1,021,657.83

(1,233,554.79)

246,710.97
(986,843.82)

1,276,086.93

(254,429.10)
1,021,657.83

For the year ended
31 December 2013

Baht

(1,043,514,429.83)
2,439,454,376.83

88,599,080.49
16,009,962.44
24,863,116.00
89,811,549.00
49,645,284.12
76,233,614.71
28,810,5627.95

1,769,913,081.71
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Notes To Financial Statements

26. Segment Information

27.

The Company operates in only one business sector, namely of property development for sales business sector and
in one geographical area which is Thailand. Thus all incomes, profit and assets as shown on the financial statements were

related to the business sector and geographical area as already said.

Financial Instruments

27.1 Policies of Financial Risk Management

The Company is not hold or issue financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

27.2 Interest Rate Risks

Risk on interest rates is derived from fluctuation of interest rate in the future which affect the financial performance

and cash flows of the Company. The Company had assets and liabilities which is exposed for interest rate risk as

follows:
Amount Interest Rate per Annum
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December
2014 2013 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Million Baht Million Baht % %

Savings Deposit Accounts 1.55 6.20 0.125-2.70 0.50 - 0.625
Bank Overdraft 12.43 9.20 MOR MOR
Short-term Borrowings 200.00 - 2.95 -
Long-term Borrowings 150.00 500.00 MLR-1.00 to 1.25,5.00 MLR-1.00 to 1.25, 5.00
Debenture 1,780.00 1,430.00 4.00-5.63 5.25-5.30

27.3 Exchange Rate Risk

The Company is not exposed to any risk from foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations because the business

transactions of the Company are conducted with domestic venders.

27.4 Credit Risk

The Company exposes to risk from extending credit to customers who default on payment however the Company
has evaluated each client’s ability to pay before giving credit and make a sufficient provision for doubtful debts in

accordance with accounting policy which the management of the Company believes that it is adequate.

27.5 Fair Value

Owing to mainly financial assets and financial liabilities were classified as short-term type and several borrowings
have an interest rate nearby the market rate, thence the management of the Company believes that the fair value of

such financial assets and liabilities do not materially differ from the carrying amount.
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Notes To Financial Statements

28.

29.

30.

Transactions with Related Person

Consist of:

For the year ended For the year ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht

Key Management Remuneration Expenses

Short-Term Employee Benefits 24,821,366.74 23,976,102.80
Post-Employment Benefits 886,253.26 887,013.20
Total 25,707,620.00 24,863,116.00

These management remuneration expenses are the benefits paid to the management and directors of the Company
consist of monetary remuneration such as salaries, related benefits and directors’ remuneration fee, including the benefits
paid by other means. The management of the Company is the persons who are defined under the law of Securities and

Exchange.

Non-Cash Flows Iltems

Consist of:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Baht Baht
Transfer Land Held to Development to be Inventories 469,217,577.00 703,738,233.00
Amortized Deferred Debenture Issuance Expenses to be Inventories 1,690,319.37 1,197,656.93
Transfer Other Current Assets to be Inventories 28,912,050.44 10,909,303.73
Transfer Disposit to be Inventories - 69,502,011.50
Purchase of Fixed Assets with credit - 1,300,000.00

Obligations from Project Development on Hand
For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, number of project development on hand is as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Number of Projects on Hand at Beginning of the period 41 35
Number of Closed Projects (4) )
Number of New Projects 6 7
Number of Projects on Hand at End of the period 43 41

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company has commitment to construct in accordance with several contracts

of project construction as follows:

As at As at

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Million Baht Million Baht

Remaining Amount of Contracted Construction 195.08 313.22
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Notes To Financial Statements

31.

32.

33.

Obligations

In addition to the liabilities presented in the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the

Company has obligations as follows:

As at As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Million Baht Million Baht
Banks’ Letter of Guarantee 592.46 356.95
Lawsuits

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has the lawsuits which were sued for claim which there is prosecuted capital

totaling in amount of Baht 6.38 million arising from breach of contracts as follows:

The case No. Red Por.Bor. 4213/2555, prosecuted capital in amount of Baht 5.98 million. On 20 June 2014, the Ap-
peal Court had sentenced that the Company has to settle in amount of Baht 3.20 million with the interest in the rate of 7.50%
per annum of the principal since the sued date (24 December 2010) until the settlement has been completed, and on 14
August 2014, the plaintiff has executed. Presently, it is under the considering of the Supreme Court to order the permission
of appeal on the Company’s petition.

The case No. Red 1054/2554, prosecuted capital in amount of Baht 0.40 million. On 27 August 2014, the Court of
First Instance had sentenced that the Company has to settle the claim in amount of Baht 0.15 million, with the interest in the
rate of 7.50% per annum of the principal since the sued date (27 August 2014) until the settlement has been completed.
Presently, it is under the process of appeal to the Appeal Court.

The ultimate outcome of the above lawsuits cannot be determined at present. The management of the Company
believes that company has the good of reason to use as argument and the case will be favorable to the company, therefore,

the Company has not made any provision for possible losses in from such lawsuits in the financial statements.

Approval of the Financial Statements

These financial statements have been approved to issue by the authorized director of the Company on 24 February
2015.
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Other References

Company’s Auditor
Ms.Chantra Wongsri-Udomporn
C.P.A. (Thailand) Registration N0.4996
S.K. Accountant Services Company Limited
128/151 Phayatai Plaza Building, 14th Floor,
Phayatai Road,
Ratchatavee, Bangkok 10400, Thailand
Tel: (66 2) 216 - 5595 -7 Fax: (66 2) 216 — 5596 - 7

The Legal Counsel
Kanung & Partners International Consultancy Company Limited
12th Floor, Nai Lert Tower, 214 Wireless Road, Bangkok 10330 Thailand
Tel : (66 2) 267 - 8931 Fax : (66 2) 267 - 8942

Dealer
Asia Plus Securities Public Company Limited
175, 11th Floor, Sathorn City Tower
South Sathorn Roadd Thung Maha Mek, Sathorn, Bangkok 10120
Tel: (66 2) 680 - 1111
Fax : (66 2) 285 — 1901

Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited

1222 Rama Il Road, Bang Phongphang, Yan Nawa
Bangkok 10120

Tel : (66 2) 296 - 2000

Fax: (66 2) 683 — 1000

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
44 |.ang Suan Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan
Bangkok 10330

Tel : (66 2) 626 - 7329

Fax: (66 2) 657 — 3333

Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limted
9 Ratchadapisek Road, Jatujak, Jatujak
Bangkok 10900

Tel: (66 2) 544 - 1111

Fax: (66 2) 937 — 7931
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Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
1101 New Petchburi Road

Makkasan, Rajdhevi, Bangkok 10400

Tel : (66 2) 208 — 5000

Fax : (66 2) 253 — 6332

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company
191 South Sathorn Road

Thung Maha Mek, Sathorn, Bangkok 10120
Tel : (66 2) 343 - 4996 - 8

Fax : (66 2) 343 — 4993

Securities Registrar
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
333 Silom Road, Silom, Bangrak
Bangkok 10500
Tel : (66 2) 231 — 4333
Fax : (66 2) 231 - 4890

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building,
Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (66 2) 229 — 2800

Fax: (66 2) 359 — 1259

TSD Call center: (66 2) 229 — 2888
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